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HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 30, 2016

. Verbati m proceedi ngs of a hearing
before the State of Connecticut, Departnent of Public
Health, O fice of Health Care Access, in the matter of
Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. (ECHN) and
Prospect Medical Holdings, Inc. (PVH), Purchase ECHN
Assets by PVH, held at the El ks Lodge, 9 N. Park Street,
Ver non, Connecticut, on March 30, 2016 at 2:00 p.m

HEARI NG OFFI CER KEVI N HANSTED: Good
af ternoon, everyone. This public hearing before the
Ofice of the Attorney General and O fice of Health Care
Access, identified by Docket Nos. 15-32016-486 and 15-
486-01-CON, is being held on March 30, 2016 to consi der
Eastern Connecticut Health Network and Prospect Medi cal
Hol di ngs application for the purchase of the assets of
Eastern Connecticut Health Network by Prospect Medi cal
Hol di ngs.

This hearing is part of the procedure
under what is commonly referred to as the Conversion
Statute, which requires the Conm ssioner of the
Departnment of Public Health and the Attorney CGeneral to

eval uate any proposal, which would convert a non-profit
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Connecticut hospital to a for-profit entity.

For OHCA' s purposes, this public hearing
is being held pursuant to Connecticut Ceneral Statutes,
Section 19a-639a and 19a-486e, and wl| be conducted as a
contested case, in accordance wth the provisions of
Chapter 54 of the Connecticut General Statutes.

M/ nane is Kevin Hansted, and | have been
designated as the Hearing O ficer on behalf of the Ofice
of Health Care Access for this hearing.

The staff nmenbers assigned to assist ne in
this case are Kinberly Martone, Steven Lazarus and Carnen
Cotto. The hearing is being recorded by Post Reporting
Ser vi ces.

OHCA w Il make its determnation on this
application pursuant to Sections 19a-486d and 19a- 639 of
t he Connecticut Ceneral Statutes.

Eastern Connecticut Health Network and
Prospect Medi cal Hol di ngs have been designated as parties
in this proceedi ng.

At this time, I'll turn it over to the
Ofice of the Attorney General for a few opening remnarKks.

MR PERRY ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you
Kevi n.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED:  You’' re wel cone.
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MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Good afternoon,
everybody. M/ nane is Perry Zinn Rowhorn. |’mthe
Deputy Attorney CGeneral. 1’ve been designated by
Attorney General Ceorge Jepsen as the Hearing Oficer in
this matter for the Ofice of the Attorney Ceneral.

| want to thank the Applicants for being
here today, the witnesses, and public officials that we
will hear from and a special thank you to the nenbers of
t he public, who are here.

W recogni ze that this transaction is
inmportant to your community, to all the communities that
ECHN serves. That’s why we’re here. W’re happy to see
so many of you here.

W recogni ze that we have sone tight
quarters, but we are happy to have you with us today.

W&’ re conducting this hearing jointly with
OHCA, but the Attorney CGeneral’s criteria in evaluating
this transaction and his focus are slightly different.
"1l say a few words about that.

The Attorney General’s role is defined and
l[imted by statute, the Conversion Act that Attorney
Hansted referred to, Section 19a-486 of the Connecti cut
General Statutes.

That Act reflects the Attorney CGeneral’s
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traditional role in protecting the public interest and
charitabl e assets and insuring that nonies and properties
commtted to a charitable purpose are saf eguarded and
used appropriately.

Non-profit hospitals and hospital systens,
i ke ECHN, hold their assets for essentially a charitable
pur pose, providing health care, not for generating
profits for sharehol ders or owners, and, in that way,
they are different fromfor-profit hospitals.

The adm nistrators of a non-profit
hospital are the stewards of its charitable assets wth a
responsibility to take good care of those assets.

The | aw does not prohibit non-profit
hospitals fromconverting to for-profit status. Wen one
seeks to do so, as here, the Attorney Ceneral’s job is to
ensure that the non-profit hospital is neeting its
obligations of good care for charitable assets.

We make sure three things, that the
process leading to the sale was responsible. Wre the
hospital admnistrators careful in deciding to sell and
choosi ng a buyer and negotiating a transaction?

Second, that the terns of the sale are
fair. WIIl the hospital get fair market value for its

assets? And, third, that the proceeds of the transaction
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will continue to be used for charitable health-rel ated
pur poses, those proceeds renain charitable assets after
the transaction, and we need to ensure that the assets of
the sale are protected frombeing used for the for-profit
pur poses of the new hospital system

Because the Attorney Ceneral nust renain
focused t hroughout on the charitable assets, his review
and our decision for the nost part does not focus on the
running of the for-profit hospital after the transaction.

| ssues relating to the operation of the
new hospital entity, as it relates to access to health
care services, are within OHCA' s purvi ew.

Today’s hearing is a very inportant part,
but just one part of a review that has been ongoing for
nonths. W' Il take testinony and evi dence, and we’l|
hear public input. W'’Ill ask sone questions.

Don’t assune, if we don’t ask a question
on atopic, that the topic is uninportant to us. Before
t oday, we have received and revi ewed thousands of pages
of docunents, we’ve asked questions and foll ow up
gquestions, and all of the materials that have been
generated as part of our review are available on the
Attorney Ceneral’s website. That is www ct.gov/ag.

Your input is particularly inportant to
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our review. Al the information we receive today and in
the hearing that we held yesterday in Manchester wl|
becone part of the official record of our review

W' || also take comments in witing, and
t hose comments, if we receive any, will be included in
the official record.

We have sheets avail able at the door, |
believe, that discuss the process to sign up to speak, as
wel |l as the process for submtting witten comments.

Pl ease take copies of those sheets for yourself or for
anyone you know, who might be interested in submtting a
witten conment.

W are on track to conplete our review
under the current schedule as early as June 10th of this
year. A word about what our decision mght entail.

Under our statute, the Attorney Cenera
nmust approve the transaction as is, deny it, or approve
it with conditions that relate to the purposes of the
Conversion Act. For the Attorney General, that neans
conditions that relate to the Attorney CGeneral’s focus on
charitabl e assets and their future protection.

This is a joint hearing. Kevin and | are
going to work together to nove this along to cover as

much busi ness as we can. You can assune that if either
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of us makes a ruling on an objection or a point of
evi dence, that that ruling applies to both of our
of fices, unless we otherwi se state it, and, if we ask a
guestion, that that question and its answer are part of
each of our office’'s review

The agenda for today is going to be
slightly different than it was yesterday. W received
some feedback fromthe public, that they wanted to be
heard earlier in our proceeding, so we’'ll proceed as
fol | ows.

W' || take opening statements fromthe
Applicants. After that, we’'ll have an opportunity for
public comment. |It’s traditional to hear from public
officials first, then we wll have questions from OHCA
and, if the Attorney Ceneral’s O fice has questions after
OHCA finishes its questions, we'll ask questions, and
then we will reopen it for public cormment after that.

l"mgoing to turn it back over to Kevin
for sone additional inportant business notes. Before
do that, I want to recognize and thank the staff fromthe
Attorney Ceneral’s Ofice, who is here with ne today.

To ny imediate left is Assistant Attorney
Ceneral Henry Salton, who is providing | egal advice to

the Attorney General and to OHCA in this proceedi ng, and
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to his left is Assistant Attorney Ceneral Gary Hawes, who
is coordinating this review for the Attorney Ceneral’s
Ofice, and wth us sonewhere here is paral ega
specialist Cheryl Turner. Thank you for your attention.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you,
Perry. At this tine, I wll ask staff to read into the
record those docunents already appearing in the Tabl e of
the Record in this matter. Al docunments have been
identified in the Table of the Record for reference
purposes. M. Lazarus?

MR. STEVEN LAZARUS: Good afternoon.
Steven Lazarus. As of yesterday, we had entered into the
record Exhibits A through BB. W also had sone
addi tional exhibits added since yesterday, so the Table
of Record has been extended to include Exhibit GG

There were sonme notes, edits that were
brought up by Attorney Matthews. Those are not being
i ncluded at this point, however, they will be done prior
to the close of the hearing, and we will provide you with
an updated, revised Table of Record prior to the closing.

M5. REBECCA MATTHEWS: Thank you. This is
Rebecca Matthews, counsel for ECHN.

W al so nmade one request about the

adm ni strative notice taken regarding the Geater
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Wat erbury Health Network application. | know that’s
already on the record. | just wanted to note it again,
if that’s okay. Thank you.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Can speakers be
careful to speak into their m crophones and nmake sure
t hat our audi ence, which extends into the second room
can hear us? Thank you.

HEAR NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you. Any
objections to the exhibits, Attorney Matthews?

M5. MATTHEWS:  No.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: No? (kay.

V5. MATTHEWS: No obj ecti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you. And
now | 'd like all those individuals, who are going to
testify here today, to please stand, raise your right
hand, and be sworn in by the court reporter. You have to
turn around, folks. She’s behind you.

(Wher eupon, the parties were duly sworn
in.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Ckay, thank you,
everyone, for doing that. Now, as we did |ast night,
woul d you just please each identify yourselves for the
record, whoever wants to start?

MB. MATTHEWS: Rebecca Matt hews, counse
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for ECHN.

MR PETER KARL: Peter Karl, CEO of ECHN.

DR DENNIS O NEILL: Dennis O Neill, Chair
of ECHN.

M5. JOY DORIN.  Joy Dorin, Board of
Trust ees, ECHN.

DR M TCHELL LEW M tchell Lew,
President, Prospect Medical Hol di ngs.

MR VON CROCKETT: Von Crockett, Senior
Vice President for Prospect Medical Hol dings.

MR JONATHAN SPEES: Jonat han Spees,
Senior Vice President for Prospect Medical Hol dings.

MR STEVEN ALEMAN. Steve Al eman, Chief
Fi nancial Oficer, Prospect Medical Hol dings.

MR TOM REARDON: Tom Rear don, President
of Prospect East.

M5. M CHELE VOLPE: M chel e Vol pe, Legal
Counsel for Prospect Medical Hol dings.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: And we had a
couple of folks in the audi ence, who were sworn in.
Wul d you just please identify yourselves for the record?
| believe the public comment m crophone is on behind you.

MR DENNIS McCONVI LLE:  Dennis MConville,
Senior Vice President for ECHN
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M5. LINDA QURICI: Linda Qurici, Vice
President for Patient Safety and Quality.

M5. NINA KRUSE: N na Kruse, Vice
Presi dent of Comuni cati ons.

MR M CHAEL VEILLETTE: M chael Veillette,
Chi ef Financial Oficer of ECHN.

M5. JOYCE TICHY: Joyce Tichy, Cenera
Counsel , ECHN

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you,
everyone. Attorney Matthews, you may proceed with your
openi ng.

M5. MATTHEWS: Thank you. 1'mgoing to
actually just turn it over directly to Dr. Dennis
ONeill.

DR. O NElILL: Thank you, Rebecca. Good
afternoon, M. Hansted, M. Zinn Row horn, nenbers of the
Ofice of the Attorney General and nenbers of the Ofice
of Health Care Access.

My nane is Dennis G ONeill. 1'mthe
Chair of the Board of Trustees of Eastern Connecti cut
Heal t h Net wor k.

|"mal so a physician in private practice
wor king in the Manchester and Vernon communities for the

past 33 years.
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Thank you for providing us with the
opportunity to submt testinony in support of ECHN s
proposal to transfer its assets to Prospect Medi cal
Hol di ngs.

First, I would like to adopt ny pre-filed
testinony, then I'd like to explain that, after ny
i ntroductory coments, Peter J. Karl, ECHN s President
and CEQ, is going to nake a brief presentation on our
financial situation.

Joy Dorin to ny left, one of our Trustees
and Chair of the Board' s Transaction Commttee, wll then
present information on the transaction, itself, and
ECHN s quality program after which representatives of
Prospect Medical Holdings will offer information on their
or gani zati on.

Manchester Menorial Hospital and Rockville
General Hospital, the flagship hospitals of ECHN, were
built about 95 years ago by nenbers of their respective
communities in response to the influenza pandem c of 1918
and, also, as nenorials to those comunity nmenbers, who
died in Wrld War 1.

For many decades, these hospitals
functi oned as separate comunity hospitals, and then

about 20 years ago, they joined together to form ECHN
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They were both in good financial shape at
the tinme, but pursued a nerger, in order to provide nore
efficient and better integrated hospital care for their
citizens.

Over the | ast two decades, ECHN has grown,
as the communities have grown, beyond the two hospitals
into a health care network with 13 whol | y- owned
subsidiaries, 12 joint venture conpani es, and dozens of
facilities serving the needs of our comrunities.

ECHN now enpl oys 3,000 people in eastern
Connecticut, and the hospitals in Manchester and Vernon
are the | argest enployers in their conmunities.

In just this last year, 2015,
approxi mately 115,000 people were treated in our
hospitals, 61,000 were exam ned in our energency
departnents, 5,000 folks were cared for by our visiting
nurses, and we delivered about 1,400 babies.

Needl ess to say, the citizens of eastern
Connecticut need and use our facilities, but the Anerican
people, in general, and the nenbers of our conmunities,
nore specifically, have told us that they want and need
care that is even nore integrated than the care they
recei ve today, care that is higher in quality and | ower

in cost.
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In an attenpt to respond to these needs
and in anticipation of worsening financial conditions,
the trustees of ECHN forned, about four and a half years
ago, a work group to eval uate whether or not ECHN shoul d
pursue a partnership with another organization

At that time, we thought we had about five
years before our circunstances becane dire, due to
changes in the health care | andscape that we thought were
going to have a negative effect on our organi zation.

The first year was spent deciding that we
shoul d partner, as opposed to going it alone. 1In the
second year, we selected as our best option an asset
pur chase agreenent offered by Vanguard Heal th System and
Yal e- New Haven Heal th System

In the mddle of that second year,
Vanguard was acquired by Tenet, and we spent the
remai nder of the year getting to know t hem

During year nunber three, we negotiated a
deal wth Tenet that woul d have preserved our hospitals,
the jobs of our enpl oyees, and the pensions of our
retirees, and provided capital for future growh, but, at
the end of 2014, Tenet abruptly left the state, citing
what it perceived as overly restrictive conditions placed

on its acquisitions by state regul atory agenci es.
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That was a great di sappoi ntnent to us,
because it essentially scuttled three years of work, and
because, nore inportantly, we were three years closer to
2016 wth still no deal in hand.

But then, in 2015, our fourth year, we
were fortunate enough to find Prospect Medical Hol dings
and spent nost of that year negotiating a deal with them
and resubmtting our application for regulatory revi ew

Prospect is a health care conpany based in
California that, through the business acunen of its
founders, the perspicacity of its senior managenent team
and the perseverance of its staff, has in the last two
decades becone an industry leader in what is referred to
as popul ati on heal th nanagenent.

That is managi ng all aspects of a health
system inpatient care, outpatient care, physician office
care and honme health care for a large group of people, in
this case eastern Connecticut, with higher quality and
| ower cost.

Li ke all health care conpani es, though
Prospect is not a perfect hospital conpany. Last year,
during inspections at two of its California hospitals,
the Centers for Medicare and Medi caid Services, CV5, nade

determnations that required correction. You' ll hear
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nmore about this fromJoy Dorin and the fol ks from
Pr ospect.

It’s inmportant to note, though, that our
trustees and corporators chose overwhel mngly, the
trustees voted unani nously, and the Corporators voted
with 98 percent in favor to transfer our assets to
Prospect for at |east three inportant reasons.

First, Prospect is not Tenet. They're
smaller in size, less threatening as a newconer within
the state of Connecticut, and because they’ re not
affiliated with Yale or Hartford HealthCare, they woul d
actually increase, rather than reduce, conpetition within
our state.

Secondly, the deal we negotiated with
Prospect is essentially the sane deal we negotiated with
Tenet, with preservation of our hospitals, enployees and
retirees and capital for our future.

And, thirdly, Prospect is a recognized
expert in what they refer to as and what you' |l hear nore
about in a couple of mnutes coordi nated regional care,
taking to a new | evel what began with the creation of our
two hospitals many years ago and continued with the
formati on of ECHN.

Now, for nore detailed infornmati on on

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ w N P

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N PP O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

18
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 30, 2016

ECHN s financial condition, I1'd |like to pass the
m crophone to Peter J. Karl, ECHN s President and CEQO

MR. KARL: Thank you, Dr. ONeill. If you
can think back this far, 2010 was a m | estone year for
the country. The Affordable Care Act |egislation was
passed by the federal governnent, and what that neant was
there was going to be a change in the way health care is
provided. Hospitals, health systens, positions will be
rewarded for value of care.

A lot of the reinbursenent risk will fal
on the hospital providers, thenselves, and the
physi ci ans, thensel ves.

This fee for service nethodol ogy that we
have |ived under for many, nmany years, as far back as
many of us can even think, is going away.

That’ s when we nmade the decision to think
about partnering. W recognize remaining i ndependent was
essentially the kiss of death.

| would ask that the regulators in front
of us please take ny next three slides and put them side-
by-side, as we did yesterday. It helps to follow al ong
for me to tell the story. That would be slide seven
slide eight and slide nine.

| began at ECHN as CEO at the end of 2004.
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As you can see by the top chart, ECHN suffered
significant |losses prior to me comng here. A lot of
this had to do with the nerger of the two institutions
and sone of the difficulties associated with the past
mer ger .

As you can see, though, in the earlier
years, fiscal year '08, '09 and ' 10, you could see that
t he organi zation was performng relatively well, not
great. Two to three percent margin, two percent margin.

But as you can see below, the situation
that we’ve all had to deal with, one is pension funding
reform and then, of course, the market crash. Al of
t hat happened between 2008 and 2009, so the liability,
our pension liability, junped significantly, and what
that really nmeant was that we had to begin funding our
pensi on significantly.

In the past, because of the performance of
t he stock market, the pension funded itself, so that was
not a concern.

Ve, then, of course, had our debt
paynents, as you can see on the bottom graph in dark
blue. Qur debt paynents were taken into account, and we
pay approxinmately $12 mllion a year to pay down our

debt .
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As you can see, we really did not increase
our debt very much, except for one year in 2009, where we
took out additional debt to replace our Critical Care
Unit at Manchester Menorial Hospital.

Back in the earlier years, in 2004, you
could see there was a junp. That noney was used to
upgrade the Rockville General Hospital facility.

What we found during these years is that
rei nmbursenent was declining, pension liability was
i ncreasing, and then, as you can see in 2015, the
governnent updated the nortality tables for a very good
reason.

Everyone was living |longer, therefore, the
nortality tables had another effect on our pension, which
our liabilities then grew significantly.

I f you | ook at the next page, you can see
that, in 2014, *15 and ' 16, the hospital tax was put into
play by the nost recent state governnent. There was al so
sequestration that was put in place by the federa
gover nnent, because they were unable to balance their
budget, and then, of course, there were other reductions
i n reinbursenent.

So, if you tie back the second page to the

first page, you can see why our incone had dropped
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significantly. You may even wonder how we were able to
survive with these significant reductions in

rei mbursenent, and we were still able to either break
even or just barely have a | oss, but what that has
created is an issue that is explained on the next page,
and that is our inability to reinvest in our facility.

We can no longer -- we no | onger have free
cash flow to reinburse, to reinvest in our facilities,
and our facilities have aged significantly.

As you can see at the top, the age of
plant is 21 years. Wat that nmeans is it’s about tw ce
as old as the average hospital plant is nationally.

The age of the plant that you'd like to
have is around between eight and 10 years ol d, and what
that nmeans is replacing equi pnent, replacing the
infrastructure of the organization, keeping it up-to-
date. Qurs is very, very old.

How are we able to still barely get by in
"13, 14, ' 15, even though we weren't maki ng any type of
i ncone, especially wth these cuts?

Vel |l we had to reduce our |abor costs,
and, therefore, 60 percent of our operating budget is
| abor. W had to reduce enployees. W had to reduce

jobs to the tune of 200 positions were elimnated.
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We also, as | nention on this slide, we
did not reinvest in the facility, so we are |inping
along. Unfortunately, we are at the end of our rope, and
the rope is beginning to fray.

So, nore or less, to wap up our
condition, our financial condition, there is continued
paynent erosion, as |’ve nentioned, declining | evels of
paynent fromthe state governnent, paynent reforns with
nmore financial risk, increased pension obligations and
rising costs. This is just sinply unsustainable.

Now, again, we saw this com ng four, four
and a half years ago. Not to this great extent, thank
you. | just lost ny mnd for a second. But we did see
it com ng.

So we went through an RFP process. Dr.

O Neill nentioned that we sel ected Prospect Medical. The
RFP process included several other suitors.

W felt, clearly, that Prospect was the
best. Prospect stepped into the shoes of Tenet Health
Care. We'll be paying $105 million to satisfy our debts
and obligations and have agreed to invest $75 mllion of
capital .

They will maintain Manchester Menoria

Hospital and Rockville General Hospital, Wodl ake at
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Tol | and and VNHSC, our Visiting Nurse of Connecticut.
They’ || continue with the brand, and they will still
install a Community Advisory Board.

And just to expand on that a little bit to
answer one of the questions that M. Salton had
yesterday, the local Board will have primary
responsibility for the quality program and are del egat ed
to make changes, as necessary.

Cor por ate provi des checks and bal ances.
That will be covered nore in the PVH presentation, but we
did have a little bit of clarification, because | know
there was sone confusion yesterday. W wanted to make
sure we responded fromboth parties to that.

There will be a continued commtnent to
charity care, enploynent for all eligible ECHN enpl oyees,
and establishnment of a coomunity foundation to oversee
the charitable funds that are |l eftover fromthe deal

This comunity foundation will be an arms
| engt h, independent foundation, not controlled by the new
ECHN.

We feel the culture fit between ECHN and
Prospect is there. W did our site visits. W visited
their organi zations, as conpared to other suitors. There

are al ways questions about why a for-profit, and ny
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answer is this. For-profits are able to go to the equity
markets. W are unable to do that.

| wanted to nake a statenment, because
think it’s very inportant. People, sone people in the
community think that there’s a benefit for
adm ni stration, nyself, to sell this organization and
that | will be making and reaping in a |ot of noney for
this sale.

This is not a |l everage buyout. This is
not a hostile takeover. This is a sale of the
organi zation that’s been agreed upon by both parties.
There is no financial benefit or bonuses for nme or for
any of the admnistrators that are on ny team | just
wanted to nmake that very clear

Thank you very much. | will pass the
bat on over to Joy Dorin, who is the Vice Chair of the
Board of Trustees.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: M. Karl, before you
do that, can | ask for one clarification for the benefit
of the audi ence?

You nentioned that for-profits have access
to equity markets, which may not nean a lot to sone in
t he audi ence, but what is the significance of that, based

on the condition of the hospital that you just described
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to us?

MR KARL: GCkay. Thank you to help ne
clarify that. Not-for-profits can only go to borrow
nmoney t hrough a bond process, so they go out, and they
seek | oans, bonds, float bonds.

For-profits are able to go out and raise
nmoney t hrough the stock market, and PVH can expl ai n t hat
nore clearly.

For instance, PMH, 55 percent of its
ownership is Leonard G een. Leonard Green is an equity
conpany, and they are able to go out and raise capital by
going, as | said clearly, and, Steve, you can -- Steve
can explain that a little bit better

MR. ALEMAN. Sure. The alternative
met hods that we have as a for-profit, as Peter was
stating, is private equity groups, who ultimately becone
shar ehol ders and can i nvest noney into the conpany for
growt h and operati ons.

In addition to that, we have access to the
open nmarkets, whether it’s additional sharehol ders or
i nvest nent banks, who |l ook to provide alternative forns
of debt, to raise capital for future acquisitions in
grow h within the conpany.

Al of those are avenues that we have at
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our disposal, we have used in the past, and | ook forward
to using in the future for the growth of kind of our --
Prospect, as it stands in future acquisitions.

MR REARDON. | wonder if I mght just add
sonmet hing, Peter. For a long time, tax exenpts had a
trenendous advantage, in that they could go out and get
taxes and financing through bonds, but do you know what
taxes and financing can be used for? Bricks and nortar,
and that’s not where the action is anynore.

You can’t use it for purposes of IT
systens. You can’t use it for purposes of popul ation
managenent infrastructure. Bricks and nortar is not
where the action is anynore, and, so, nowit’s a huge
shortcom ng for non-profit tax exenpt organizations.

M5. DORIN. Thank you and good afternoon.
My nane is Joy Dorin, and | adopt ny pre-filed testinony.

| " ve been a nmenber of the ECHN Board of
Trustees since 2004 and currently serve as the Vice Chair
and Chair of the Transaction Conmttee.

In ny professional life, 1've held
positions in health care organizations, including G gna
Heal th Plan, Athena Health Care and Qualidigm the
state’s quality inprovenent organi zation that works with

the Centers for Medicare and Medi cai d.
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Thr oughout ny career, |’ ve been invol ved
in and responsible for quality, patient satisfaction and
conpliance matters across the health care conti nuum

In addition to ny professional background,
|’ma longtine resident of Manchester, nearly 40 years.
Wiile | was born and raised in New Jersey, | consider
Manchest er ny hone.

This is where ny friends live, ny son and
his young famly live, and ny husband owns a snall
busi ness on Main Street.

| nmentioned ny Manchester roots, because
insuring ECHN s future is inportant to nme, and it’s
inmportant to every other individual and famly, who |ives
east of the river.

I n eval uati ng our options, we established
four goals, that high-quality health care services are
accessi ble, affordable and delivered safely to the people
in this part of Connecticut, that clinical services are
expanded, that enpl oyees continue to have jobs, and that
facilities and technol ogy are upgraded.

Dr. ONeill talked about the inportance of
preserving ECHN to serve the public need, and M. Karl
covered the financial challenges and how t he Prospect

transaction will allow ECHN to neet these chall enges.
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|’d like to spend a few m nutes focusing
on the inportance of quality and safety. W are proud of
the efforts our staff and physicians have taken.

O note, ECHN was one of the first
networks in Connecticut to becone a high-reliability
or gani zati on.

HRGs understand that they operate in an
environnment of high risk. Industry exanples are health
care, aviation and nucl ear power.

These organi zati ons work hard to nanage
risk and strive to reduce accidents, but, if they do,
HROs will work to learn fromthese accidents to m nim ze
t heir reoccurrence.

Thi s deci sion and journey has changed our
culture to the benefit of our patients. It has resulted
in process inprovenents and a reduction in serious safety
events.

Qur focus on quality has resulted in the
Joi nt Conm ssi on recogni zing our two hospitals as top
per formers.

At Manchester Menorial Hospital, we were
recogni zed for heart failure, pneunonia, surgical care,

i mmuni zation and perinatal care and at Rockville CGeneral

Hospital for pneunonia, surgical care and inmunization.
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Because of these acconplishnents, it was
i nportant that our potential acquirer share our
commtnent to quality and safety.

As part of our initial due diligence, ECHN
requested quality information fromall potentia
acquirers and did a side-by-side conparison of the CV5
quality indicators.

We al so visited hospitals owed by the
potential acquirers and nmet with staff nenbers invol ved
in quality and performance i nprovenent.

More specifically, visits were nmade to
Prospect hospitals in California and in Rhode Island to
obtain additional information and to | earn nore about the
Prospect coordi nated regi onal care nodel.

When ECHN | earned of the inmmedi ate
j eopardy determ nations identified at the Los Angel es
Community Hospital and the Southern California hospitals,
the Board determ ned that it needed nore information and
appointed a quality evaluation teamto research and
report back to the Transaction Commttee and t he Board.

| was appointed to the team along with
Dr. Mchelle Conlin, the Chair of the Performance
Assessnent and | nprovenent Comm ttee and a practicing

physi ci an, and three nenbers of ECHN s Quality
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Departnent, the Vice President of Quality and Safety and
two Quality I nprovenent Managers.

The team was charged wi th determ ning
whet her Prospect’s experiences in California could
threaten or dimnish ECHN s current quality and safety
standards and its ongoi ng performance i nprovenent
initiatives.

To conplete our charge, the teamfirst
focused on the i mMmedi ate jeopardy issues and defi ciencies
and Prospect’s plans for correction.

The team found the renedi ation plans to be
conprehensi ve and appropriate, and, in several mnutes, a
representative fromProspect will provide nore
information on these issues, their root causes and the
corrective action plans.

The eval uation team however, didn't stop
here. W decided to go broader and deeper, and, over the
| ast four and a half weeks, we requested, received and
revi ewed extensive anmounts of information from Prospect
about its hospitals in California, Texas and Rhode
| sl and.

This information included past regul atory
surveys, renediation plans and year-over-year quality

metrics. The quality reviewers focused, in particular
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on the nost recent surveys, as they would be nost |ikely
to reveal any issues or patterns of concern with how
Prospect currently conducts its hospital business in the
areas of quality and safety.

The team al so | ooked retrospectively at
qual ity assessnent and performance i nprovenent indicators
and prospectively at the 2016 Quality Assessnent and
Per f or mance | nprovenent Pl ans.

Additionally, we reviewed enpl oyee
turnover statistics and, in a parallel activity,
col l ected and di scussed updated financial information.

G ven that regulatory standards are
applied differently anong regi ons, the evaluation team
pai d special attention to Prospect’s Charter CARE
hospitals i n Rhode Isl and.

The eval uation teamsent its Quality
Department team nenbers to those hospitals for a day-Iong
visit to observe and evaluate the aspects of the quality
and safety prograns in person.

The ECHN reviewers found not only that the
prograns were of high quality, but they had been
enhanced, rather than scal ed back, after Prospect’s
acqui sition.

Thr oughout this review, Prospect nade its
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information and personnel fully available to assist us.
As we di scussed their plans and approach to quality and
safety, Prospect was asked specifically whether or not
t hey expected to receive any additional survey

defici enci es.

Prospect responded that, while imediate
j eopardy findings were not expected, because of the new
quality controls, structure and processes it had
inplemented, it was |likely that additional deficiencies
woul d be noted. This, in fact, did happen.

In the March 23rd CMS response to the Los
Angel es Community Hospital resurvey, the hospital was
cited for deficiencies.

Prospect conmunicated this to us on the
sanme day they were notified, and we have since had
several follow up conmunications with them about these
results.

Quality inprovenent, by definition, is a
continuous process. W all know hospitals are conpl ex
regul ated organi zations with many noving parts, and
sonmetines, despite the best intentions and focus on care,
i ssues do ari se.

After the review just outlined, the

eval uati on team concl uded the i medi ate jeopardy issues
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were isolated, that Prospect took the California survey
results seriously and responded swiftly with corrective
actions.

The eval uati on team al so col |l aborated w th
the Transaction Commttee and ECHN Council to eval uate
Prospect’s continued appropri ateness as a transaction
partner. The Transaction Comm ttee recomended that ECHN
seek a quality commtnent letter to ensure ECHN s pati ent
quality, patient experience and safety prograns retain
their forward nomentum for a period of tinme post-closing.

Prospect has agreed to execute such a
letter, which also contains a provision for ECHN to
benefit fromthe quality inprovenent prograns observed at
the Charter CARE hospitals and to naintain these prograns
consistent with industry best practices.

Based on the findings presented by the
eval uation team and the protections gai ned under the
quality conmtnment letter, the Transaction Committee
recomended and the Board confirmed ECHN s commtnent to
proceed with the transaction.

Wth the Prospect acquisition, ECHN w ||
have responsibility for quality and safety. This neans
the current ECHN quality teamw || continue its good work

in eastern Connecti cut.
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In addition, it is anticipated that
Prospect’s eastern region, which includes Prospect’s
hospitals in Connecticut and Rhode Island, wll
col | aborate on quality and safety neasures that are
expected to be inplenmented in Prospect’s hospitals across
t he country.

ECHN | ooks forward to this col |l aboration.
Thank you for your tine.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you. Can | ask
for sone signal fromthe back about whether fol ks can
hear what's being said up here? Ckay, thank you

DR. O NEILL: That concludes ECHN s
initial presentation. Next, I'd like to pass the
m crophone to Dr. Mtchell Lew, the President and CEO of
Prospect Medi cal Hol di ngs.

DR LEW Good afternoon. ECHN and
Prospect, commtted to this community. Wo is Prospect?
W are a health care services conpany that operates |oca
comunity hospitals. W utilize |ocal governance and
| ocal physician | eadership.

We make investnents in our hospitals and
in our communities. Sone exanples of this would be in
Rhode Island. W recently conpleted a beautification

project at the hospital, where we redid the entry, we’ve
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enhanced the A lab, and we’re | ooking to possibly open a
cardi ac heart | ab.

As far as investnents in the communities,
in California, we identified two comunity needs that
needed to have sone facilities, so we opened two new
hospitals, one in Bellflower, it’s a psych hospital, and
one in Orange County, California, which is an acute ned
surg.

The stability that we offer comunities
are continued enpl oynent and creation of new jobs. W
expand prograns and services to inprove access and
quality.

Some exanples of this would be, in our
hospitals in Texas, we opened up an energency room In
California, we've opened several urgent cares and
wel I ness clinics, and, also, in Rhode Island, we’ ve
opened several urgent cares in and around the conmunity.

Qur hospitals. W have 14 conmunity
hospitals, seven in California, four in Texas, and we’ ve
owned those for about four years, two in Rhode Island,
and it’s been comng up on two years, and one recently in
New Jer sey.

W serve many different coormunities. 1'd

like to point out that many of the hospitals that we have
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are in underserved communities, and we accept all health
plans. To us, a patient is a patient.

W provide nedical, surgical, in sone
cases tertiary, psychiatric and long-termservices. W
have a | ot of experience in proving nultiple services at
our facilities.

We have over 40 outpatient clinics and
centers. A lot of the care in our nodel is delivered
outside of a hospital, because we want care to be
appropriate in the right setting.

W’'re not just a hospital conpany. W
al so own and operate nedi cal groups. W’ ve been doing
this for quite sone time in California. You can think of
our physician groups as nulti-specialty health care
provi der groups w thout walls, and our physicians are
linked into what we call |ndependent Practice
Associ ations, or |IPAs, and these are just networks of
doctors that work very closely together, and, in these
net wor ks, the physician can be i ndependent, on their own,
or they can be enpl oyed.

Either way, it works for us, and inportant
to note that we are an open system

As 1’ ve nentioned, we’ve been in Southern

California for quite sone tinme, over 20 years. Also, in
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Texas. W have over 500 doctors in our network, in Rhode
| sl and, over 350 physicians, and, even in New Jersey, we
have about 125 physici ans.

We're contracted with all major health
pl ans. W have nearly 9,000 physicians under contract.
W take care of nearly 300,000 patients, and we provide
coordi nation of care across the entire continuum so if a
patient is in a hospital or in a nursing facility,
clinic, physician office, we follow their care
t hr oughout .

Qur goal is to achieve better outcones,
wi th higher patient satisfaction. W want patients to go
and tell their famly and friends to cone receive care
her e.

Now t hrough our experience of operating
hospital s and runni ng physician groups, we’ ve devel oped a
very uni que nodel of care, and it’s a delivery nodel that
we refer to as Coordi nated Regi onal Care, or CRC

And, so, the definition of CRCis the
integration hospitals, physicians and ot her nedi cal and
community providers, and | want to enphasize comunity,
because we al ways work with the conmmunity and | ocal
agenci es, whether it be a hone health agency, or a DME,

Dur abl e Medi cal Equi pnent conpany, or a palliative
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conpany. W always create the network with the
surroundi ng community providers, but we work very closely
with the health plans and the governnent payers in a very
strategi ¢ way, because we want to achi eve the best
patient care and the best outcones.

W’ ve inplenented this nodel in seven
regions, in California, Texas and Rhode Island and
currently in devel opnent in New Jersey, Connecticut and
Pennsyl vani a, and we’ve al ready nade great strides here
in Connecticut, in terns of setting up our nodel.

W practice popul ati on heal th managenent,
which is a very popul ar buzz word, but, to us, what that
simply means is that we value the care of every person in
the community, and we want to nmake sure that we take the
best care of everyone.

Wth this unique nodel of care provides
hi gher val ue, because, in our opinion, better care does
not need to cost nore.

So what is our secret? How do we do this?
How do we inprove care and outcones? W use a patient-
centered and a physician-1ed approach.

We have multi-disciplinary care teans that
take care of high-risk patients 24/7. W have the

ability to stratify the sickest patients in the
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popul ation and really focus with these teans. The teans
consi st of nurse practitioners, social workers and
pharmaci sts that follow a patient and are avail abl e
around the clock, and, if necessary, we will go to the
house to evaluate a patient and provi de care.

W engage the patient and the famly.
spoke already to the honebound program W take care of
specific diseases wth specific care plans, such as
di abetes and heart di sease.

We integrate behavioral health, because
we’ ve | earned that many patients have coexisting
di agnoses. Sone are nedi cal di agnoses, sone are
behavi oral health, and, in order to really appropriately
and efficiently take care of one’s health, you ve got to
approach both, the behavioral health and the nedi cal
health, so we’ve inplenented that into our nodel.

We have Quality Care Coordinators, who are
peopl e that just work the phones. They get patients in
to see their physician. They make sure they cone in for
their screening, their wellness, because those are
i nportant, obviously, in taking care of a patient and
provi ding the preventive heal th nmeasures.

We follow patients in the hospital

skilled nursing facilities, long-termcare. Again, this
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speaks to our care across the conti nuum and, of course,
this is a physician-Ied network.

We are absolutely commtted to quality,
and we’ ve achi eved the highest quality scores across our
medi cal groups.

In California, the | argest, actually CAPG
California Association of Physician Goup, is the | argest
trade association in the country. W’ ve reached the
hi ghest level of quality, it’s elite status, and it’s
been for four straight years.

Anot her respected trade association, |HA
has recogni zed us for things, such as clinical quality,
and, in California, the Departnent of Managed Health Care
has recogni zed us for treating cardi ovascul ar di sease,

di abetes, and this is sone of the disease-specific care
pl ans that |I spoke to on an earlier slide.

Qut of a five STARrating, we are four to
five STAR on our Medicare Health Plan Quality and
Per f ormance Rati ngs.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: Dr. Lew, if I could
just ask, by way of clarification? Wat |I'mgoing to try
to do here, | know that you' ve gone to pains to translate
your presentation into lay ternms, which | appreciate.

It’s vital that we nake sure that the key concepts being
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di scussed are understood by our audi ence.

Wth respect to your comments on
coordi nated regional care, can you talk a little bit
about what that would nean for a patient at an ECHN
hospital, how that experience m ght appear different from
what exists, whether that is a nodel that, if this
transaction were to be approved, would be noved to
imedi ately, or is there a transitional period first?
Thank you.

DR LEW Sure. Thanks, Perry. So,

Perry, traditionally, patients will go to their doctor
They may get admitted. They' Il get treated at the
physician’s office. They get sick, they call 9-1-1, they
go to the enmergency room they get admtted to the
hospital, they have a | ot of whole host of tests done,
they’'re released fromthe hospital on seven different
medi cat i ons.

They go honme, they don’t really renenber
how they’ re supposed to take their nedication, when
they’ re supposed to see the doctor, the primary care, the
cardiologist. You ve got nultiple specialists that see a
patient in the hospital.

Fam |y nenbers don’t always get the

directions and the instructions, because they are at
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wor k, and, so, the patient is not sure exactly what’'s the
followup. How do I take ny nedications? They may cal
their doctor. They go see their doctor within a week or
two, and the doctor says, oh, | didn't know you were in
t he hospital

What did they do? Let’s get sone tests.
Let’s get the records. Let nme |look at them Meanwhile,
the patient may -- their condition nmay deteriorate, and
you've lost a lot of tine, and you ve lost the continuity
and the coordination of care between what happened in the
hospital and what’ s supposed to happen at the physician's
office, and, so, often, the patient will get readmtted.

Maybe they took their nmedications the
wong way, or they forgot, the famly nmenber didn’t
remnd them and the patient goes back to the hospital
or the patient may go hone and get dizzy, may fall and
fracture their hip, then they get taken back to the
hospi t al

This is very common. |’ m pointing these
t hi ngs out, because we see these things happen, and, so,
inlay ternms, the reason why | want to give this exanple
is because | want to illustrate how within our nodel the
I'i kel i hood of sonething |like that would be very | ow

So the patient gets admtted to a
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hospital. Rather than call 9-1-1, we would probably, if
this is a patient that we’'ve identified to be at ri sk,
the patient will likely call our nurse practitioner, who
woul d make an eval uation either by phone or go to the
house, the patient’s house and say, okay, Ms. Smth may
be inalittle bit a congestive failure, alittle bit of
fluid in the lungs, and we should admt her to the
hospital, so we would arrange to have Ms. Smth brought
to the hospital and imediately transfer the care to a
hospitalist, a physician, who works in the hospital, to
t ake over the care.

Once the patient is admtted, we begin to
start planning, okay, what are going to be the needs
post -di scharge? And, so, we'll get the appropriate tests
in the hospital and the appropriate speciali st
consultants to cone and evaluate the patient and do the
tests, and then, whether it’s a couple of days, we'll
transfer Ms. Smth to a |ower |evel of care. That m ght
be a skilled nursing facility.

And then our nulti-disciplinary team of
the nurse practitioner and the pharnacist nay go to the
skilled nursing facility and say, Ms. Smth, you have
t hese seven nedications. Do you know how to take thenf

Let nme explain to you howto take these nedications, so
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that you don’t get readmtted.

So, again, that’s the handoff. That’s the
conti nuum of care that these Care Plus. W’ ve branded
our prograns, and we’'ve called it Care Pl us.

And, so, we’'ll go skilled nursing
facility, and then we’ll evaluate the hone. 1Is she ready

to go hone? Does she have the proper support and the

proper care taking at home, and then we’'ll transfer,
we' Il have the patient transferred from skilled nursing
to hone.

Al'l throughout this, we're letting the
primary care physician know what’'s goi ng on, that your
pati ent has been admtted to the hospital and is nowin
skilled nursing, and we’'ll send the records
el ectronically to the primary care, and then, once the
pati ent goes hone, our rule of thunb is, when the patient
goes hone, got to be seen post-discharge clinic or in the
primary care within 24 hours.

So we want her to be seen in the
physician’s office. |If the doc is closed, not avail abl e,
we setup wellness clinics within the comunity, and our
wel I ness clinics have multiple purposes. One of them
woul d be to evaluate our patients post-discharge, and,

so, Ms. Smth could go to the post-discharge clinic to
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be evaluated, or go to the physician’s office, and if

Ms. Smth requires transportation, we'll arrange for the
transportation, but now she is |ocked into our system if
she wasn’t already.

She’ s going to have an assigned case
manager that will nake sure and foll ow her care
t hroughout. We've |learned that, if you can identify
really those sickest patients, it’s around five, 10
percent, that’s a nmgjority of the spending, and you
really got to do a good job of focusing on taking care of
t hose patients.

Perry, that’s just an exanple of wthin
our nodel, a very sinplistic way for the audience to
understand how it could work, but, obviously, there are a
| ot nore conplexities that we could add to it, in terns
of , you know, nore conplex issues, besides congestive
heart failure.

We coul d tal k about how we woul d, when
Ms. Smth is feeling great and needs her well ness exam
or needs to have the quality neasures done, we’'ll nake
sure and coordinate that with her, with the physician' s
of fice, and hel p nake the appoi ntnent, so that she can go
back for her other types of screenings. W build that

into our nodel, also. Does that help?
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MR ZINN ROMHORN: It does. Thank you
So | have just one followup. 1It’s a nodel that relies
on interaction and rel ationships with physicians in the
comuni ty.

Is it anticipated that the physicians, who
currently have relationships with -- privileges or other
rel ati onships with ECHN hospitals would continue to have
t hose rel ati onshi ps under Prospect?

DR LEW Yes. They would still continue
to have admtting privileges, and what we found is it
tends to be nore efficient to have a designated
hospitalist group see the patient, but that’s just a
general rule.

| mean | think that what’s inportant is
t hat the physician adheres to our standards of how
qui ckly you need to see the patient and nmake sure and
stay on top of it and coordinate with the specialist.

It’s not something nagical that a
practicing physician can't see a patient in the hospital
and has to be a hospitalist, but it’s nore that they do -
- the hospitalists tend to do this every day, seven days
a week, but we have exanples in various markets, where
groups of primary care physicians said | want to be part

of that panel.
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And, so, as long as they can adhere to our

progranms and work closely with our nedical directors, who

are all local doctors, right, the physician | eaders are
all local, as long as they can adhere to the policies and
procedures that we’'ve established, | could see a

scenari o, where we coul d have | ocal physicians
partici pate.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you

MR. CROCKETT: M nane is Von Crockett,
and | adopt ny pre-filed testinony.

Dr. Lew had just previously nentioned
several of our awards that we’'ve won. | wanted to take a
few nmoments to discuss the issues that Ms. Dorin brought
forward regarding the recent events that have occurred in
California and sone of the m stakes that were nade and
the corrective actions that this organization is taking
to resolve themand to inprove our quality program

Specifically, in late 2005, during a visit
by CM5 to do surveys at two of our licensed facilities --

MR ZINN ROMHORN: M. Crockett, do you
mean 20157

MR CROCKETT: 2015. Thank you. 2015,
CVB, during a survey process, had identified areas where

the care that was being provided was not neeting the
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standards of conditions for Medicare, the CVS5 conditions
of participation, and they had given the two facilities
what’' s called a deficiency notice of imedi ate jeopardy.

By definition, inmmedi ate jeopardy neans
that the care and the processes that are currently being
provided to a patient could cause harmto a patient.

The deficiencies were specific in the one
facility at LA Community Hospital for an allegation of
physi ci an m sconduct, and then there were two i mmedi ate
j eopardies at the Southern California Hospital |icense.

The first one had to do with the
tenperature and humdity in the operating room and the
cath |l ab was not being maintained consistently, and then
the second i medi ate jeopardy was the infection contro
specifically for the washing of sterilization of surgical
i nstrunents.

In the three situations, there was no
specific patient harmthat did occur, that, once again,
it was for that the processes could potentially cause
har m

When we received the notifications,
Prospect took the allegations very seriously and began
steps to do renedi ation of all three.

From a process perspective, once you
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receive a notification of inmrediate jeopardy by CVB, it’s
expected to be resolved i medi ately, and they actually
don't leave the facility until the allegation has been
abat ed.

Once it’s been abated, then they wll
issue a report, and included in the report will be other
deficiencies that they identify, in addition to the
i mredi at e j eopardi es.

I n each of those cases, there were
additional deficiencies that were identified, and they
were specific to infection control, patient care, the
qual ity program and gover nance.

Specifically to the quality program what
the found in the organi zation was that the quality
programwas a kind of a static programthat was
continuing to collect data and information and that it
wasn't being adapted in a real time fashion to address
the issues that were occurring at the facility, and they
saw that the quality programwas marching off to one
degree and that the quality -- | nean the quality program
was marching off to one side, and the organizati on had
i ssues that weren't being addressed, and, so, there was a
deficiency fromthe quality program

Once the issues were identified, there
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were imedi ate steps and issues taken to resol ve t hem
One of the first things that was done was that Prospect
engaged a national consulting firmthat has a track
record of assisting hospitals and addressi ng these type
of issues, then they were brought on site for both of the
| ocati ons.

MR, HENRY SALTON. Excuse ne. Could you
say when that occurred?

MR. CROCKETT: W received reports in

January. | don’t have the exact date, but it was
approximately January. | don’'t have the exact date in
January.

MR SALTON: And when you brought on this
consul ti ng group?

MR CROCKETT: Ch, | didn't understand the
first question, when you say it occurred.

MR SALTON: kay, so, when did you bring
on the consulting group?

MR CROCKETT: It was in January of 2016.

MR. SALTON: (Ckay and the statenent you
made about the quality program being static, when was
that identified to Prospect?

MR CROCKETT: Well we didn’t get the

details of the report until approxi mately January, as
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wel |, for both situations.

MR SALTON: Was there a verbal conveyance
of the concerns on the quality?

MR. CROCKETT: Not at the tine. W
actually didn't receive that deficiency until January.

MR SALTON. kay.

MR. CROCKETT: Wien they were on site,
they were really focused on the i nmedi ate jeopardy issue
and maki ng sure that that was resolved, in addition to
some ot her patient care concerns.

The role, in addition to that, the
corporate office had started the process of providing
addi tional resources, so that the organization could
correct the issues that were identified.

In terns of a root cause anal ysis and
| essons | earned, and there were several |essons |earned
there that are applicable as we nove forward, the first
one had to do -- in terns of sone of the causes, first,
before we get into | essons | earned, on the cause issue is
the one facility, Southern California Hospital, is an
organi zation that is needing -- had previously gone
t hrough a bankruptcy and had a substantial anount of
deferred mai ntenance, and we were in the process of doing

construction up on the roof, when one of the contractors
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had a snall localized fire that caught fire and ended up
damagi ng our air conditioning systemthroughout the
facility.

Thr oughout that process, the organization
did not have the appropriate response in resolving it to
the degree it should have been resolved, as well as from
a timng perspective.

Part of the issue, as well, from-- and
that caused multiple issues, in addition to the HVAC
system Secondarily, though, as an organi zati on, we had
del egated the role of the quality programto a | oca
| evel, and, with that, as the organi zati on was dealing
Wi th these issues, it was being dealt with at a | oca
| evel , without the proper oversight at a corporate |evel.

Lastly, as the organizati on was needi ng
addi tional resources, those issues weren't brought
forward in a tinely fashion, as well

So in ternms of steps to resolve, as it
relates to the i nmedi ate issue, of the i medi ate jeopardy
i ssues and getting themresolved, is that the nationa
consulting firmwas brought in, and they have severa
roles that they re actually doing.

The first role is to help us prepare the

response, what's called a plan of correction, back to
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CVB. Froma status perspective, we have, on the LA
comunity, we have prepared a plan of correction. CM
had cone out and done a resurvey, based upon that plan of
correction. That resurvey occurred in the mddl e of
February.

When they were on site, the issues
associated with i mredi ate jeopardy, the quality program
and several of the other original deficiencies were
resol ved, but, during the site visit that they did, did
identify two issues still outstanding or new issues.

One had to do with nursing services or
patient care, and the second one had to do with infection
control. That plan of correction on that one is in the
process of being witten and prepared, and it shoul d be
conpl eted approxi mately by April the 8th.

For the Southern California Hospital, we
have subm tted our plan of correction to CV5, and that
pl an of correction has been shared wth ECHN, as well as
the regulatory officials, and we’'re awaiting at this
point for CVM5 to conme out and do the resurvey associ ated
wi th Southern California Hospital

| should nention, as well, that, as part
of this process, CM5 has put us on what’'s called a

termnation track, and, currently, the term nation track
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for the LA community license has currently now been
extended to approximately June 13th.

For the Southern California Hospital
that’s currently on a track for | believe it’s May 23rd,
and our expectation is that we are taking every step
associ ated that’'s needed to resol ve these issues.

CGetting back to our engagenent with a
consulting firm--

MR ZINN ROMHORN: M. Crockett, if you
don’t m nd breaking there for sonme points of
clarification? W had a very extensive discussion on
this subject yesterday in Manchester, and | want to make
sure that our audi ence today has received a simlar |evel
of clarity or at least information around what this CVB
process neans and entails and | ooks |ike going forward,
so, just by way of termnology first, CM5 is the federal
regul ator that manages the Medicare and Medi cai d
progranms, is that correct?

MR. CROCKETT: That's correct.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: And when we tal k about
i mredi at e j eopardy, you nentioned conditions that m ght
pose patient harm but the i medi ate jeopardy referenced
is not imrediate jeopardy to a patient, but it is

i nedi ate jeopardy -- you've been notified with respect
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to your hospitals that they are in i medi ate jeopardy of
being term nated from participation in the CV5S prograns,
is that right?

MR. CROCKETT: Well you can actually
receive an i nmedi ate jeopardy and not be term nated from
the program | don’t think that actually how you’ ve
articulated it is actually accurate. The imedi ate
jeopardy is actually a level -- it’s a deficiency |evel,
and it basically is stating that your care processes are
not consistent to the point of inmediate jeopardy of
concern, as it relates to the patient.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Ckay, so, let ne say
it differently. The threat, that you have been notified
by CMS, is that, if these conditions aren’t corrected to
CVB' s satisfaction, that the hospitals will be term nated
fromparticipation in the CM5 prograns, is that correct?

MR. CROCKETT: It is correct, and | think,
just in terns of froma context perspective, | want to
spend just a second on that.

From a context perspective is that the
federal governnment has what’s called conditions of
participation, what are basically expectations of how
care is provided for patients throughout the United

States for hospitals to abide by.
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From an adm ni strative process, the
federal governnent does not have a way of i nposing
penalties or fines, in terns of when organizations either
are not -- are not failing to adhere to them and, so, as
a process perspective, in the event that organi zations
find thenselves in the unfortunate situation of not
adhering to them then their only possible recourse is to
the threat of renoving a hospital |icense.

There is no other adm nistrative process
or penalty associated with that, and, so, by default, it
is a way to nake sure organi zations take this very
seriously and to provide every recourse necessary for it
to be resolved and appropriately so.

CVMB has every intent, when these do occur,
is to get the organizations back to the | evel of
participation, and it does happen, but it’s pretty rare,
for CVMb to actually close a hospital down or termnate
the license for it, and they usually do it for two
reasons.

One, if a hospital is in the process of
bankruptcy or they don’'t have the cash to correct the
i ssues that are needing to be corrected, or, two, if they
just don’'t have the desire to adhere to the rules and the

policies going forward.
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Most often, the tine or the circunstance
is that they will continue to work with organi zations to
the point that they believe that the organizations are no
| onger i nproving.

There are many hospitals that have
actually received i medi ate jeopardy and/or term nations,
and they’ ' re everything fromcomunity-based hospitals to
| arge teaching organi zations with well-known reputations.
Two of those that come to mnd is UCLA Medi cal Center
and, actually, the develand dinic was in the past
recent history put onto a termnation track, so we have
every intention of noving forward.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you. That's
hel pful. And just one further clarification. W have
been tal ki ng about i medi ate jeopardies wth respect to
two individual hospitals in California, but the way those
hospital licenses are structured the i medi ate jeopardy
notices actually pertain to six hospitals, is that
correct?

MR. CROCKETT: That is correct. There's
seven hospitals in California, and the Los Angel es
community license is a three-canpus system and the
Southern California Hospital license is also a three-

canmpus |license, and, so, froman admnistrative
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perspective, when CVS does its process, it’s on the
i cense.

And, so, even though the issues are
predom nately two of the six, that all six hospita
Iicenses are inpacted by the actions that are being
undert aken.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Understood. And, so,
you know this, but 1'll clarify it for our audience. W
have asked you and you have agreed that we will keep the
record open in our proceeding, so that we can receive al
t he conmuni cati ons between Prospect and CMS with respect
to these i medi ate | eopardi es.

MR. CROCKETT: That's accurate. Moving
forward, in terns of our investnent in quality, so, in
addition to hel ping them address the plan of correction,
t he ot her aspect that they are working on or that they
have conpleted is to revise our quality program
specifically, making sure that the program at each
license is specific to each facility, and that it is
addressing froma nonitoring perspective the areas of
concern that have been identified by CV5 so that not
only do we correct these imedi ately, but there’ s going
to be ongoing conpliance with the plan of correction and

a nonitoring associated with that.
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The ot her thing that they have done is
t hey have gone through our process of |ooking at our
policies and maki ng recomendati ons to themto making
sure that all of our policies are adhering to the
Medi care conditions of participation and nmaki ng them
wor kabl e fromthe facility, as well.

From an oversi ght perspective and getting
back to kind of the | essons |earned, the quality program
at these two facilities, as well as our other facilities,
have been predom nately del egated down to the facility
| evel .

Wth that, we are now addi ng additiona
corporate quality | eadership oversight to these two
facilities, as well as to our other hospitals, as well.
Specifically, we have created four additional positions.

One will be a Chief Quality Oficer, the
second wll be a Chief dinical Oficer, the thirdis a
Chi ef Corporate Nursing Oficer, and the fourth is a Vice
President of Regulatory Affairs and Patient Safety.

The role of these four individuals are
going to ensure that we have an active quality program at
each of the hospitals, that the programis reflective of
t he individual issues that are being raised and are being

nmoni t ored and adapted, as appropriate, that the quality
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prograns are consistent wth the industry standards and
nati onal patient safety goals, and that when

organi zations are not -- when each of these facilities
are not neeting the conponents of the quality program
that they identify the resources and a review of the
policies and procedures, in order for the facilities to
get back on track and neet those objectives.

These positions are relatively new, and
we' ve got three of the four in place, and the fourth one
will be on board shortly.

The third issue is we’ve established
regional hospital quality oversight, and the point of
that is that we don’t intend to have everything running
through California, so, for our east coast facilities, we
wi Il have an individual on the east coast to assist with
what |’ve said the four individuals will do, but nore on
a real tinme basis on the east coast, as well.

And, lastly, this is sonething that we
have | earned in conjunction with our work with
Charter CARE, and that, recently, Charter CARE has adopted
what’'s called a high-reliability process organization.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Charter CARE i s your
Rhode I sl and?

MR CROCKETT: Correct. And what we’'ve
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seen is that, within the first year of themadopting it,
we have seen areas on their quality plan that have
started to show i nprovenent, and, with that, we have al so
reviewed the quality programfor ECHN, and they have been
a long-time nenber of the HRO process, as well

As part of the process that we have
recently gone through, in conjunction with working with
ECHN, what we have agreed to do, and ECHN has a great
quality program it’s very thorough, and it’s an adaptive
quality programthat they are achieving high marks on, is
that Prospect has agreed for us to adopt the current
quality programthat’s currently at ECHN, as well as
that, froma | ocal Advisory Board perspective, is that
the | ocal Advisory Board wll be responsible for setting
t he goal s and the conponents of the quality program and
that the role of the corporate oversight wll be really a
check and a bal ance, and what does that exactly nean?

A check and a bal ance is specifically are
they on track, or are they on target? Are the goals
consistent with hospital and industry best standards?

And in the event that they’'re not neeting the goals, what
resources need to be brought in froma policy perspective
and/or froma resource perspective, so that would be the

role of the corporate oversight. W have agreed this for
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a two-year period.

| want to switch gears for just a second
now and talk a little bit nowin regards to what do we
expect of kind of a post-transaction for ECHN? To do
that, | wanted to spend just a nonent regarding the
operations in Rhode |Island, CharterCARE

W have -- the acquisitionis alittle
over alnost a year and a half now, and, after a year and
a half, there’'s been sone substantial inprovenents, in
ternms of the health care delivery nodel in Rhode Island,
and we’ re hopeful in expecting the sane progress to be
made i n Connecti cut.

First of all, is that the Rhode Island
mar ket was nade up of predom nately a | ot of independent
physi ci an groups, either ones, or twos, or small groups
that were not in an organi zed fashi on.

We have conme in, and we have organized it
into a multi-specialty IPA, with over 100 primary care
provi ders that now have the ability to contract with

health plans as a single entity going forward.

62

W’ ve increased the enpl oyed physicians by

over 50. Previously, they had around 18, and we’'re now
over 50 enpl oyed physi ci ans.

As part of our popul ati on nmanagenent,
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we’ ve expanded the outpatient clinics outside of the
service area, as well as an investnment in an outpatient
oncol ogy center.

Froma quality perspective, the
organi zation, the cancer centers achi eved academ c
certification fromthe Joint Comm ssion, and we have
expanded a significant strategic capital, in order for
this organization to nove forward.

They were in a simlar situation, where
t hey had deferred mai ntenance and weren’t able to invest
in the equi pnent and technol ogy they needed to care for
their patients.

And then, lastly, Rhode Island, |ike
Connecticut, is a Medicaid expansion state, and, as part
of the expansion state, the Rhode Island budget, as they
expanded Medi caid, has increased their deficit on the
state budget through all the fee for service activity
that was occurring for Medicaid.

In working with the | egislative bodies up
there, Prospect is in the process of inplenenting a
Medi cai d nanaged care pilot project, and the goal of this
isto, as Dr. Lewwas alluding to, is to have the
Medi cai d popul ation into an environnment, where their care

is coordinated, and, with that, we believe that this w |l
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save the state of Rhode Island over $6 mllion on an
annual basis through the pilot project.

As part of our expansion outside of the
state of California, in addition to Rhode I|Island and now
in New Jersey, when we | ooked at Connecticut, there were
several favorable things that we found that we believed
t hat, when you | ooked at our nodel of working with the
heal th plans, as well as the physicians, wuld be very
favorable for the citizens of Connecticut, in conjunction
W th us.

The first one is that Connecticut is a
Medi cai d expansi on state and, as such, is going to be
needing to have a different way or nodel of how the care
is delivered, in order for it to be renai ning affordable
to the citizens of Connecticut, as well as the state
budget .

The health plans wi thin Connecticut, and
this is inportant to us, are actually very receptive to
our types of nodel and changing froma fee for service
into a val ue-based care.

Later on, Dr. Lew can go into sone of the
work we’ ve al ready done in engaging the health plans in
Connecticut, and it’s been significant.

ECHN, as an organi zation, already has
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hi gh-quality physicians with a great reputation, and it’s
an organi zation that is |ooking for val ue-based heal th
care know edge and expertise, and, so, lining up what
their needs were with us, it looks like a perfect fit.

When we get on a post-acquisition basis,
one of the things that Dr. Lew alluded to is that we
don’t go out of network with the insurers. That's
actual ly part of our business, and, so, what you see is a
different type of relationship, where you see the health
pl ans, the physicians and the hospital actually working
together, and it’s all focused on the patient.

Wth that coordination of care, we believe
that there will be better care for the patients, as well
as hi gher satisfaction.

Through this, ECHN wi |l have i nproved
access to capital and greater financial strength to
insure its long-termfinancial viability.

MR. ZI NN ROMHORN: Let ne take a nonent
there. Thank you for that. | notice we've been joined
by State Representative Srinivasan, and our understandi ng
is you have a difficult schedule today, sir, so we’d be
happy to hear fromyou now, if you d |like to be heard.

MR. PRASAD SRI Nl VASAN:  Good afternoon,

M. Zinn Rowt horn, M. Hansted, and nenbers of the Board.
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| want to thank you very nuch for giving
me this opportunity to be here this afternoon and very,
very grateful to you for accommodati ng ny schedul e and
letting me get back to the LOB. | appreciate that very
much.

|"m Prasad Srinivasan. |'ma State
Representative from d astonbury, and this is ny third
term |I'mthe State Representative. |’'malso a
practitioner. |I'man allergist in private practice in
the Hartford area.

| haven’t conme here to drum up business
during allergy season, so that’s not why |I’mcom ng here,
to do that, but we do have an office here, incidentally.
(Laughter) My partner cones to Ellington, so we're very
much here.

The reason |’mhere is for you to consider
this partnership between ECHN and Prospect Hol dings. As
you know, the entire |andscape in health care has
changed, and it’s constantly changing, and, in this
| andscape, where we are at this point, we really don't
know what’s com ng down the pike for us tonorrow and,
obvi ously, nonths and years to cone.

Wth that in mnd, when you | ook at the

needs of the hospital and you | ook at the needs of the
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patients, it is a changing playing field, and we hope to
be abl e to accommobdate the needs of our patients.

Patients, for them access is very, very
critical. Thirty-five years ago, | opened ny practice in
the Hartford area, and ny first satellite was on the
other side of the river, and | would al ways ask ny seni or
partner, whom | joined, what is the big difference? Wy
cannot these people from Manchester, Rockville and
d astonbury cross the river and cone to Hartford?

He says, no, Prasad, you don't get it.
There is a nental block about that. People do not |ike
to cross and cone over, and |’ve seen that in ny 35 years
of practice, so the access is ny biggest concern with
t hese hospitals.

ECHN, the two hospitals that form ECHN,
are so critical in the services that they provide to the
area, and, |ooking at where we are, and |’ m sure, between
yesterday and al ready, you’' ve heard the financial story,
so I"mnot going to go over that at all, that’s not ny
intent, to talk about the finances of the hospitals, but
that is of concern, because unless we have the viability,
the financial viability, nmy concern is for our patients,
is what’s going to happen to these patients, who |ive

here, and this is their honme?
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Just the end of |ast year, late |last year,
nmy enpl oyee’ s husband got extrenely ill, extrenely ill
and to the point that it perhaps may have been
appropriate for himto go down to either Yale or to
Hartford, because of the severity of his illness, but he
chose no.

He said | do not want to go there. This
is the hospital that 1’ve been to. This is where ny kids
were born. This is where | belong, and, whatever happens
tone, it’s going to happen in this hospital.

Fortunately, he did extrenely well. He
recovered, and he’s back hone, and that’s the m ndset of
peopl e that we need to be able to realize and recogni ze
how i nportant it is.

So when you | ook at the needs for the
patient, that’s what |’ m nost worried about, that if
t hese doors were to be closed, or partially closed, or
what ever happens, because, obviously, because of
financi al reasons, what will happen to their services,
whet her it be primary care services or it be specialty
services?

Al'l of them are needed right here in the
area, and when we have sonebody that it is possible for

us to have in this day and age a very, very difficult
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| andscape here in the best of both worlds, | hope you
will give that the utnost consideration.

| know you will. [I'mwell aware of that,
but I hope, at the end of the day, it will be that we can
go ahead with this nerger.

Wien we | ook at this, at the hospitals
now, as you're well aware of, the needs of the hospital
froma patient point of view have increased trenendously.

Medicine is just outpacing itself, in
ternms of its technol ogy, and we need to keep track of
that. W need to provide the top services. W cannot
say that, in this hospital, an MRl cannot be done, or a
third degree CAT scan, or all of those procedures cannot
be done here, and you need to go sonewhere el se.

W need to be able to provide all of that,
so we can take proper care of our patients, and for that
message, that we are state-of-the-art, we will continue
to be state-of-the-art, and we will continue to stay
here, is very critical.

Equal |y i nportant, rather than being here
only, which is obviously very inportant, is for us to
recruit physicians, to recruit health care providers into
t he area.

|"msure you' re well aware of the
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financial state that our state is in, and, given where we
are, it is difficult to recruit people. It is very
difficult to get people to cone to our state, and
physi ci ans and health care providers are no exception.

Si x years ago, when | ran for ny office
for the first time, | needed help in ny office. | have
advertised left, right and center to get another
allergist to join me. Long story short, | haven't got
one yet, so that’s the climate that we are in,
unfortunately. That’'s the nessage we have been given for
smal | busi nesses.

So to recruit physicians for us, to
recruit top class technicians, health care providers, the
PAs and the APRNs, the nessage to them has to be very
clear. This is a viable organization. This hospital is
here to stay. The systemis here to stay for years to
come, and this is a place you could call hone.

So | hope, when you look at it froma
financi al point of view, which you already heard about,
but, nore inportantly, appeals of our patients, that they
need to get their access here, and | fully agree, | fully
agree we need to have oversight. No question at all
about that.

The | abor contracts, we need to | ook at
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themcarefully. W need to nake sure that physicians and
other health care providers don't feel that their jobs
are at risk, so should there be oversight? Absolutely,
yes, but in the right mx.

When you drive a car, you have an
accel erator, you have a brake. You need both of themto
go fromPlace Ato Place B, so, simlarly here, | hope
the oversight will be not be so burdensone, so burdensone
that nobody is willing to cone to Connecticut. W need
to find the right balance for you, ne, and, nore
inportant, for our patients.

Thank you very nuch for giving ne this
opportunity today. | appreciate that.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you very much
Represent ati ve.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: Can | ask, while we're
taking this break for comment, do we have Mayor Chanpagne
in the audience? Do we? OCh, I'msorry. Thank you.

W’ d be happy to hear fromyou, as well, sir.

MAYOR DANI EL CHAMPAGNE: Thank you. First
of all, I'd like to take the opportunity to thank you for
letting me speak today.

M/ nane is Mayor Dani el Chanpagne of
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Vernon, and Rockville General Hospital is here in ny
town, and Rockville General Hospital neans a ot to ne.
Both ny kids were born there. | nmet ny wife there,
because | work there. It’'s very inportant to ne that
Rockvi |l | e stays open.

|"d like to thank the Ofice of the
Attorney Ceneral and the Ofice of Health Care Access for
their work in review ng the proposal to ensure that
resi dents throughout the service area, including those
who reside here in Vernon, wll continue to have quality,
af fordabl e, and, nost inportantly, accessible health
care.

|’d |ike to begin by saying Rockville
General Hospital is our hospital. It has served as a
pillar of our community for nearly 100 years. Wen it
was first established on Prospect Street in 1921, our
community donations built it.

When it relocated to its current |ocation
on Union Street in 1945, the Tolland County regi on
supported it.

For nearly a century, each tine the
hospital has faced trouble, the community has pul |l ed
together, turning it around with our donations and our

hard wor k.
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In return, Rockville General Hospital has
been a place where generations of our residents have
recei ved accessible quality health care. Today,
Rockvill e General Hospital and the Visiting Nurse and
Heal th Servi ces of Connecticut are Vernon’s second and
third | argest enployers, respectively.

My | argest concern about this proposed
sale is that Prospect is only required to state its
intentions for Rockville General Hospital for the next
t hree years.

One reassurance was that Prospect had
stated they are not in the business of closing hospitals,
but I would like a |onger commtnent just on paper,
because that woul d make ne feel better

| also requested the Attorney Ceneral’s
Ofice to ensure that all charitable trusts in the
foundati on funded fromprior donations remain true to the
goals of the original donors. The trust should continue
to be applied for the good of the patients and the
comuni ty.

In summary, during these tough econom c
times, it’'s inportant to save our local hospitals to
ensure every citizen has affordabl e accessible care at

t he highest quality right here in our community.
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| don’t want to | eave Rockville. | don't
want to | eave the Vernon area for health care when we
have it here. W'’'ve had it here for a century.

Rockvi |l | e General Hospital provides
medi cal services to all our residents, including many
seniors and those, who live in | owinconme housing.

These services are offered right in our
nei ghbor hoods and backyards, so there’s no need to travel
| ong di stances, especially if the nedical needs are a
critically urgent matter

| vow to do everything in ny power to make
sure Rockville General Hospital remains a vital part of
this comunity.

Vernon and the surroundi ng conmunities
rely on both nedically and financially for the nunerous

jobs it provides.

Again, | want to stress that Rockville
General Hospital is our hospital. W started it. It
began here with the generosity of our residents. It has

remai ned here with their continued support and patronage,
and we eternally consider -- and will eternally be
considered a community asset for the nedical care it
provides to Tolland County.

And when | refer to Rockville Hospital
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| "ve had procedures done at Manchester, too, because sone
were offered there. | think one of the big | osses was
when we got rid of the maternity ward, and, having both
nmy daughters born there, it was quite a loss to ne. |
understand why it was done. It just hurt. | think it
hurt our community.

| was very surprised with, not unexpected,
but when M. Karl stated that he realized that, if we
don’t do sonething, it’s the kiss of death for our
hospital. Taxes are on the rise fromthe State. W’re
| osing noney federally. W need to do sonething, and
| ooking for a partner to cone in and save our hospital is
sonmet hing that is necessary.

Thank you for the opportunity to speak
t oday.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you, Mayor

MR. SPEES: Thank you and good afternoon.
|"d like to say a few things just about the commtnents
that Prospect is nmaking to the comunity as part of the
transaction, and sone of these have been nentioned by M.
Karl in his presentation, but the first couple of points
relate to the key financial terns of the transaction and

t he purchase price of $105 mllion
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It’s significant not just because it
represents fair market value for the assets of ECHN, but,
al so, as Peter nentioned, it elimnates, together with
the existing assets of ECHN, it allows the hospital and
the health systemto pay off all of its debt, so, upon
closing of the transaction, the health system at ECHN
will be debt-free, and that elimnates in excess of $9
mllion worth of capital that has been previously
required to pay down debt, as opposed to becom ng
avai l abl e for investnent in the health system

In addition to the purchase price, we' ve
conmtted to make a mininumof $75 mllion in capital
expenditures to be spent or comnmtted to be spent within
five years of the cl osing.

A coupl e of things of significance rel ated
to the $75 mllion capital conmtnment. It is an
investnent in the system so don't think of it as
exclusively investnment capital for bricks and nortar and
equi pnent .

It really is intended to devel op the
coordi nated regi onal care nodel and increase access
points in the system so while the strategic and capital
pl an has yet to be developed, it's likely to include

I ncreasi ng access points, particularly on the anbul atory
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care side in such things as urgent care centers or
addi ti onal physician |ocations.

It’s also available for service |line
devel opnent in devel opi ng new service lines for the
community hospitals, as well as the nore traditiona
capital investnents in facilities and equi pnment.

| wanted to nention a couple of things in
followup to our conversation yesterday regardi ng the $75
mllion capital conmtnent, and | wanted to point out,
after having had a chance to review the | anguage in the
purchase agreenent, that the $75 million is, in fact, not
condi tional .

There are provisions that nerely call for
the potential deferral fromthe five-year capita
commtrent, but not the $75 mllion, and that deferra
has to occur in consultation with |ocal comunity nenbers
and with the |ocal Advisory Board, and it’s limted to
the isol ated case, where there is a state action that is
discrimnatory towards for-profit hospital and health
syst em oper at or s.

In addition to the capital expenditures --

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: |Is there an outside
time limtation on how |l ong that commtnent could be

differed, in the event that the --
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MR SPEES: Yeah, that’s not specified in
t he purchase agreenent, so the | anguage in the purchase
agreenent says with consultation with the Board and the
comuni ty.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: | should say, just for
t he benefit of our audience here, we did have a
di scussi on yesterday about sone concerns that we have
about any conditions on the capital commtnent as part of
our charge here.

A significant part of our charge is to
eval uate whether the assets are receiving fair market
val ue, and part of, a substantial part of the val ue of
this transaction, as you’ ve highlighted, is the capital
comm tnent, so any conditions, no matter how attenuated,
t hat suggest that that capital conmmtnent could be
altered in sone substantial fashion, would be of sone
concern to us.

MR. SPEES: Under st ood.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you

MR. SPEES: 1In addition to the financia
terns, the straight financial terns of the transaction,
as has been nentioned, we have commtted to maintain
ECHN s current charity care policies, or, if we nake

changes, they will result in policies that are at | east
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as favorable as the existing charity care policies.

Agai n, Prospect is about access, and we
want to assure the community that that access wll
remain.

Wile we are a Californi a-based conpany,
we're very strong believers that health care is |ocal,
and the key decisions regardi ng strategy and operations
needs to be nade locally, so we are commtted to our
| ocal managenent team here at ECHN

W' ve called for the establishnent of a
| ocal Advisory Board, which I'Il talk a little bit nore
about in a m nute.

And with respect to the existing nedica
staffs, they will remain, and, as of the closing of the
transaction, they will all becone nenbers of the Prospect
medi cal staff.

W’ ve al so coomtted, as part of the
transaction, to maintain the hospital services, as has
been nentioned, for a period of three years.

Qovi ously, should we nmake any changes in
there, that would be in consultation with the |oca
Boar d.

In addition, we’ve conmtted to hire al

3,000 enpl oyees of ECHN, and you’'ll note on the slide it

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o b~ w N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00O N O O B W N +—» O

80
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 30, 2016

says in good standing, so that begs the question what
does good standing nean? |In the case of ECHN, really, we
do one single pre-enploynent screen, and that is to nmake
sure no enployee is on the Ofice of Inspector Ceneral’s
exclusion list for participation in the Medicare program

And, lastly, as has been previously
menti oned, at the request of ECHN s Board, we entered
into a quality commtnent letter to provide that we wll
mai ntain their existing quality prograns for a period of
at |least two years.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: M. Spees, was there a
commtnent to honor the Coll ective Bargai ning Agreenents
that are in place?

MR. REARDON: May | answer that?

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Sure

MR. REARDON: There is. There is such a
conmmi t nment .

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: And | guess, while
we’ re paused, the three-year commtnent that you
menti oned and the Mayor referenced is a commtnent to
mai ntain the hospital as an acute care hospital or the
hospitals, | should say?

MR. REARDON: That’s correct.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Ckay.
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MR SPEES. So | want to talk a little bit
about the Advisory Board, and it actually should be nore
correctly label ed as Advi sory Boards, because each of the
two ECHN hospitals will have its own |ocal Advisory
Boar d.

This is a key partnership for Prospect and
for our |ocal managenent teans here. This |ocal Advisory
Board really serves as a resource for both Prospect, as
wel | as our |ocal managenent team regardi ng our capital
comm tnent and how t hose funds should be invested in the
heal th systemand with respect to our strategic planning
process, which will begin al nost i mredi ately upon
cl osi ng.

It’s, also, these Boards will be one of
many opportunities for our community nenbers to engage in
conversations with both the local teans here locally, as
well as with Prospect executives.

In addition to its advisory role with
respect to the capital conmtnent and strategic planning
of Prospect and ECHN, the Advisory Board will be
principally responsible for nedical staff credentialing,
and will maintain and oversee our quality assurance
program and, also, wll be principally responsible and

oversee and manage the accreditation process, so those
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activities at the Board level will be principally the
responsibility of the | ocal Advisory Boards.

Cver tinme, we expect that the Boards wl|l
al so support us in our physician recruitnent efforts, not
only providing input into physician needs in the
comunity, but support our efforts to bring new
physi cians into the comunity, recognizing that this
commtnent that we're nmaking in this partnership with
ECHN is not just a one or two-year commtnent. It is a
very |long-term conm t nent.

In the event that at sone point in the
future there is a | eadership change at the hospital, we
woul d 1 ook to the |l ocal Advisory Board for input into any
| eader shi p change.

MR, REARDON. | was delighted to hear
Mayor Chanpagne nention that Rockville Hospital started
on Prospect Street. W’'re hoping that we’'ll be able to
bring that full circle on there.

Prospect offers a unique health care
delivery nodel. 1'd like to enphasize the words health
care delivery nodel. It has been nentioned previously,
but we are not a hospital-centered conpany. W are a
physi ci an-centered conpany, but it’s about putting

t oget her a coordi nated regional care nodel, which
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i ncludes all kinds of conponents in the comunity.

It may be surgery centers, it’s hone
heal th agencies, it’s community nental health. W need
to have the entire network. W don’t have to own
everything, but we need that entire network, in order to
provi de coordi nated care to our patients.

Thi nk about that for a second. Mtchel
was tal ki ng about an exanple, and the fee for service
system we have now is so fragnented. 1It’s so fragnented.
You can have a situation, where the prinmary care doc
doesn’t even know that their patient is in the hospital.

Under our system we coordinate care.
Sonmebody knows where our patients, where our nenbers are
at all times. W will followtheminto the honme. W'l]I
make sure that they get better care, and, frankly, it is
better care.

In ternms of cost, think about that for a
mnute. 1'mgoing to over-sinplify this, but think about
it. You go to a primary care doc and you get sone tests.
Not hi ng wong with that.

The primary care doc is doing everything
they think he or she should do, and then you go to a
speci ali st and you get sonme tests. Again, nothing wong

with that. They're trying to do the best they can do.
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And then you go to a hospital and you get
some tests, and sonme pundits will suggest to you that at
| east 30 percent of the fee for service dollar is wasted,
and you can see how it could be wasted.

Wth coordination of care, you actually
can squeeze dollars out of the system and reduce cost.
ECHN hospitals are | owcost hospitals. W |ike comunity
hospitals.

No di srespect neant to the academ c
medi cal centers. They' re the crowned jewel of Anerican
medi ci ne, but if you conpare the cost at ECHN to a Yal e
or to a Hartford, frankly, the costs are about $5,000 a
di scharge nore at the academ c nedical centers, and not
everything has to be done there.

And, so, we think it really does pronote
better community care. W think it really does provide
| ower cost.

In terns of enpowering |ocal physicians, |
menti oned yesterday, and I’'ll say it again, at
CharterCARE, with our IPA there, | think as nmuch as a
third of the physicians have been attracted to the |PA,
even though they had nothing to do with Charter CARE
hospitals, sinply because they feel enpowered, and they

feel empowered, because, under the current system fee
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for service doesn’t provide the nonies, in order to
devel op coordi nati on of care.

And with the nonies provided wth risk
contracts, you can actually build the infrastructure,

i ke we have devel oped, in terns of population
managenent, to do real popul ati on nmanagenent, and the
physi ci ans are in charge.

No di srespect neant to the managed care
conmpanies. W work with them but the physicians are in
charge, and they feel enpowered, and they actually get
better results. Point blank, they get better results.

In ternms of maintaining and creating | ocal
jobs, 1"Il say it again. W are a conpany, we're a
grow h conpany. W’re not a contraction conpany.

In terns of extensive corporate resources,
| mentioned popul ati on managenent infrastructure. W
have hundreds of people, who will do analytics, will even
do clains processing, not because we think it’'s a sexy
busi ness, but that’s how we get data. Wen we nedica
managenent, we assist the | PAs, and we assist the
hospitals in both respects.

In terms of |ocal |eadership, all health
care is local, and, so, we really do support the |oca

| eadership with regional oversight, and Von and ot hers
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have alluded to the fact that, with our quality program
at this point, we will have checks and bal ances at the
corporate | evel.

| nvesting significant capital, again,
ot hers have enphasized this, but it’s in the system
It’s in the network. [It’s not just about hospitals.

Yes, the hospitals will get investnent,
but devel opnent of networks will get investnent, other
things will get investnent, as well, because we want to
devel op a network.

In terns of charity care policies, yes,
we’'re going to preserve those policies. | think
menti oned yesterday and 1’'Il say it again, nmany of our
hospitals are safety net hospitals. W enbrace Mdicaid
and i ndi gent popul ati ons.

In terns of Medicaid pilots already
alluded to in Rhode Island, we’ve enbarked on a Medicaid
pilot project. W’d love to do the sanme thing in
Connecti cut.

If I could nove to the next slide? W
i ke Connecticut. Let ne tell you why we |ike
Connecticut, and we |ike Rhode Island, and we |ike New
Engl and, and there are a variety of reasons for that.

First of all, there’'s very little
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penetration froma managed care standpoint, in terns of
real risk contracting. Prospect has been awarded one of
21 organi zations in the entire nation that CV5 has said
you are a next generation ACO where you can do downsi de,
as well as upside risk.

There’s been very little risk managenent
or risk contracting in the state of Connecticut, and if
you | ook at the SIMprogram the State |nnovation Mdel,
they’ re tal king about noving as many as 80 percent of all
patients in Connecticut to a val ue-based paynent in just
a couple of years. W know howto do that. W’ ve been
doing that for 29 years. W think we can hel p achieve
t hat .

Wien we | ook at the nmetrics in
Connecticut, in Connecticut, if you take 1,000 patients,
Medi care patients, and you tal k about how many days you
expect themto spend in a hospital, | don’'t renmenber the
exact nunbers, but I think it was 1,400, in aggregate,
days in a hospital

W try to keep patients out of a hospital.
In our hospitals in California, we’ ve got the days down
to about 700, as opposed to 1,400, and that doesn’t nean
it hurts the hospitals. To the contrary.

W have a saying; nore and better for
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less. If we do a better job and we do it for |ess noney,
we’'re going to get nore patients, and that’s what we’ ve
seen as vol unme increases.

There are other things that really --
there’'s still a fragnmented physician market. W work
very well wth independent physicians, and, in terns of
attracting physicians to a marketplace, we’ ve had
t remendous success up at Charter CARE

W’ ve got a whol e new vascul ar surgery
group that cane in from Massachusetts. W’ ve attracted
general surgeons when we’ ve been told, oh, you can't
attract those folks. W have, because they fee
enpower ed.

And, so, we think that Connecticut is a
t remendous opportunity to really transformthe way health
care is delivered in the state. Again, our nodel is
di sruptive innovation, is what it is.

Last slide, whoever has it. Ch, thanks.
So our goal, our goal really is the triple aim W
really do think with our nodel, and | nentioned yesterday
| ve been around for a couple of years, but | was
attracted to Prospect, because | really do believe they
have the special sauce to do this; higher quality care,

hi gher patient satisfaction, highest value, |ower cost.
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We're very excited about the possibility
of working with ECHN in Connecticut. And, with that,
t hat concludes our Direct testinony from Prospect.

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: So | et ne ask one
question, by way of clarification. Again, for the
pur pose of making sure we're talking in terns that people
can understand, you’ ve nentioned risk or val ue-based
contracting a fewtines, and | think you re making a
contrast to fee for service.

For exanple, in the Medicaid case, you
m ght, under a fee for service contract, you had paid per
procedure that you provide, but aml right in
under standi ng ri sk base? You would get paid a certain
fi xed anmount per patient or per nunber of patients, and
what ever care they get, you're only going to get paid
t hat one anount?

MR REARDON: | will defer to Dr. Lew on
that, but essentially correct. What we do with these
risk contracts, like in California, where it’s very
advanced, is the nanaged care conpanies will pay us 90
cents or 88 cents on the dollar, they will do the
mar keting, we’'ll do everything else, and we’re basically
responsi ble for the care of that patient conpletely.

It has to conme out of the budget we have,
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and we’ ve devel oped systens to do exactly that.
Mtchell, do you want to el aborate?

DR. LEW Yeah, Perry, that’s correct.
Traditional fee for service physician, the hospital gets
paid per unit, so nore volune, nore noney they nake.

We're evolving into a nore val ue-based
type contracting system where | guess the first step
woul d be physicians, hospitals would get rewarded if they
are able to save on total cost of care, and then a nore
mat ure | evel beyond that would be to take what we cal
gl obal capitation, which is, again, a fixed anmount to
take care of a popul ation, whether they pay for the
hospital care, pay for the physician care.

And Tomreferenced the ACO and, so, CMS
has cone out with ACOs as a way to really nove health
care delivery nodels into the direction of coordinating
and managi ng care quality, but, also, cost, so the
| eaders that are doing this have started and noved al ong,
and, as Tomreferenced, our conpany is fortunate to be
one of only 21 health systens in this entire country to
be approved as a next generation ACO, which is the nost
mat ure nodel so far that’s put out there by the
gover nment .

W' ve been far ahead of the curve in
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California, and it’s just a matter of tinme before other
states adopt these nodels, and, so, the sooner that we
can cone and inplenment the nodel | think ECHN wi |l be
wel | ahead, and we will be |l eaders, |leaders in
transformng the delivery nodel in the state, and then be
able to go to the Governor and propose Medicaid pilots to
provide a better quality of care, but, also, save the
state and their Medicaid spending, and that’s what we do
with the commercial health plans, also, and they get it,
but, again, it’s a step-w se process.

| don't think we’ll go directly to gl oba
cap on day one, but it takes tine to get there. The
initial stages of just setting up the structure, setting
up the network, and we talked a little bit about this
yesterday, establishing a risk-taking entity and the
necessary |licenses, we’ ve already done that here in
Connecticut, and we’ ve engaged the pl an.

Qur goal is to hopefully be approved and,
when the deal closes, to have our structure established
and have engaged in signed contracts with the health
pl ans.

And | think, over the next several years,
we' Il be all staring at capitation, which is great. It’s

a good way to do it. The docs love it, and | think the

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ wWw N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N PP O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

92
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 30, 2016

patients will see the results of it, in terns of better
care and hi gher patient satisfaction.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you. At this
time, we'll take a 10-m nute break, and, then, when we
resune, we'll have public commentary. | don’t know where
the sign-up sheets are, but this would be a good tine to
get your name on it, if you want to. Thank you.

(O f the record)

(Wher eupon, the public spoke.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: W are going to
continue with today’s hearing, and we'll turn to OHCA s
guestioning. M. Lazarus, if you want to begin? Just
gi ve hima couple of m nutes.

MR. ZI NN ROMHORN: Before we | ose nenbers
of the public, who nay be leaving, I'd invite you to stay
for this portion of the discussion, because what 1'd |ike
to do, with the consent of our friends from OHCA, is ask
the Applicants to address sone of the concerns that we've
heard articul ated by nenbers of the public.

And, so, I'll point you to, | think, sone
concerns that stood out to nme as thenes, and I know we
heard this from Ms. Fisher when she spoke, and she
wanted to know why we ought not wait until the CVB

concerns are resol ved before you proceed with this
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transaction, so |I'lIl open that up to you and be
interested in your thoughts in response to that question,
and anyone can take that.

MR. KARL: This is Peter Karl, CEO of
ECHN. | thought the testinony that was presented by us
was quite clear. The burden of the additional taxes, the
burden of sonme of the federal reductions in reinbursenent
has led to the dem se of the independent hospital as we
know it, and for us to delay any |onger would put the
organi zation as a whole in total jeopardy, as it relates
to survival for the long-term

There are bond covenants that need to be
met, and what that neans is, with the anmount of debt that
we currently carry and have carried for nmany, many, many
years, there's certain neasures that we have to neet.

Wth these nbost recent taxes that were put
on by the state of Connecticut, we wll no | onger be able
to neet those bond covenants, and, if that happens, the
bond insurers will come in and strip down the
organi zati ons and nost probably nmake a significant
recomendation to consolidate all services at one
institution.

There isn't tinme to wait, and, very quite

honestly, we’ve done a very deep dive into the quality
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i ssues that occurred out in California.

We spent many hours, day and ni ght,
| ooking into them W are confident that Prospect is the
right partner, and waiting any |longer is too dangerous
for the survival of the organization

DR. O NEILL: This is Dennis O Neill
Chair of the ECHN Board.

To be perfectly honest, we did entertain
that idea. The trustees and the Transaction Conmttee
did discuss at great |ength whether it woul d be prudent,
nore prudent to wait until these issues were resolved,
reconcil ed, and then conme back to the bargaining table,
so to speak, but the short answer is we’'re running out of
time.

As Peter stated, within nonths, if not
before, we will trip our bond covenants, which will set
into notion a nunber of deleterious effects for the
organi zation froma financial standpoint, so we felt, I'm
tal king about the trustees, we felt it was better to
proceed wth the transaction working with Prospect to
assure that the quality prograns that we have in
Connecticut remain intact and are, if anything, enhanced,
rather than table the deal for sone tine period and all ow

the organization to continue into financial jeopardy.
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W thought it was basically better to
proceed and work with Prospect to maintain our quality,
rather than continue into financial jeopardy.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: Dr. Lew?

DR LEW Yes, thank you. Again, to
revi ew what the agreenent and the understanding, as it
relates to quality in California and the quality program
wi th ECHN, you know, what happened in California
certainly is concerning, and M. Crockett went over what
we're doing to address it, and we're very proud of what
ECHN has devel oped in the area of quality and being a
high-reliability organizati on.

And, so, we did reach an agreenent, and
it’s in witing and signed, that we will support that
program and, so, we’'re not bringing California s quality
programto Connecti cut.

We're going to support the existing
program t hat Connecticut has, as we have done in Rhode
| sland. Rhode Island has their program and we let them
control locally what that plan is, and they manage it,
and we just serve as a check and bal ance system

And to use the nice | ady’s anal ogy on
bei ng an educator and a student, you know, if you want to

| ook at us as performng an F on the test in California,
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that student is not comng here to tutor Connecticut on
quality, okay?

W're going to tutor that student in
California to becone an A, and that California student is
going to continue to be an A student with our support.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Anybody el se want to
address that, that point?

M5. MARTONE: | would like to ask
Prospect, specifically, if you can address three things
that the public brought up last night and toni ght, today,
and that woul d be the independent nonitor, the
i ndependent onbudsman, and the subm ssion of sone type of
formof the contents of a 990 Form

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: W' Il take a
two-m nute break, just so you can converse on that.

(O f the record)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: W' re back on
the record. Thank you.

DR LEW Kim |1’mgoing to have Tom
Reardon answer questions one and two.

M5. MARTONE: Sure.

DR LEW And Steve Aleman will answer
guestion three.

M5. MARTONE: Thank you.
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MR REARDON. In terns of an independent
monitor, we’'re absolutely open to that for a period of

tine.

»

MARTONE: Ckay

3

REARDON: What was the second
guesti on?

MARTONE: The onmbudsman.
REARDON:  Ch, onbudsman.

5 3 &

MARTONE: The i ndependent onbudsman.
MR, REARDON. W think the independent
onbudsman woul d be duplicative of what we have the
Advi sory Board doing. Furthernore, as Peter will point
out to you, we have all kinds of patient advocates within
the system itself, so we think it would be duplicative.
M5. MARTONE: | think the concern that was
addressed yesterday was the fact that they wanted to nake
sure that he was an i ndependent onbudsman that wasn’'t
directly picked from hospital managenent that people
could go to. Is that what will be part of the |oca
Advi sory Board?
MR, REARDON. Well the |ocal Advisory
Board is independent. Those comunity nenbers, who wll
be there to listen, and, as Peter said, there’'s been a

process, whereby the corporators, 300 of them elect a
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Board, and it’s constantly rejuvenated, and, so, | think
there will be independent fol ks on that Advisory Board,
and, again, we think it would be duplicative to have
addi ti onal requirenents.

M5. MARTONE: Ckay.

MR ALEMAN: And related to the request
for disclosure, such as the information, the 990,
Prospect has supported transparency in Connecticut, as we
have worked through this process and transactions in
ot her states.

This isn't the first tinme that we’ ve
encountered it, and we’ve worked very closely, for
instance, wth the Departnent of Health in New Jersey on
transparency and di scl osures, and, actually, they noved
forward to ensure that for-profits had simlar
di sclosures as the not-for-profits, and we’ ve supported
that, worked directly with the Departnent of Health, and
we support that here in Connecticut, as well.

M5. MARTONE: Ckay, thank you. And, going
to that, do other states, or have other states required
you to have independent nonitors, or onbudsman, or any
type of individual?

MR. REARDON: I n Rhode Island, there were

conditions of approval, and there was an i ndependent
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monitor, ny recollection is for three years, to nmake sure
that those conditions were upheld and i npl enent ed.

M5. MARTONE: Ckay, but not an onbudsman
or any type of individual?

MR, REARDON. No. Not to ny know edge,
no.

M5. MARTONE: And then Steve had questions
about it, but since we’'re here at this point, in terns of
the community health needs assessnent, you know, we
di scussed that |ast night, and the inportance that OHCA
puts on that, in terns of not just evaluating Certificate
of Need and | ooki ng at clear public need, but ensuring
that there’'s access to high quality and affordabl e
services in underserved areas nost of the tinme, so we do
require hospitals to participate in conmmunity health
needs assessnents.

Al'l hospitals in Connecticut submt their
i npl enmentation plans, as well as any data, sonetines that
we need in order to evaluate that, and you had confirned
that there was a willingness to participate, correct, and
i nvol ve the community and its nmenbers and ot her providers
in conducting a needs assessnent of the area to determ ne
needs, and you al so expl ai ned how you al so have netrics

and anal ytics that are exceptional and enhanced, if you
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can talk to that.

DR LEW Correct, so everything you said
can, in ternms of the needs assessnent, |ocal input, |ocal
advi sory, but we certainly want to nake sure w thin our
nodel that there is access to care within the conmmunity,
whet her it be through a physician’s office, a comunity
clinic, an urgent care.

| spoke earlier about having these clinic
sites for post-discharge patients recently discharged
fromthe hospital. Very inportant for us to nmake sure
there is access and primary care driven and central
around -- primary care being central.

We woul d | ook, and we often work with
heal th plans, and in states, where we have pilots, we
have to make sure that there is adequate access. There
are very strict requirenments on that.

And we don’t want our patients having to
travel far for their care, because, if they have to, they
won't go seek care, so it’s just part of our overall
anal ysis that we undertake to nake sure that it’'s
conveni ent and conprehensi ve.

M5. MARTONE: Now, again, the sane
guestion. Are you required in other states to

participate in a coomunity heal th needs assessnent? Have
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you conducted any yourselves, or with other partners?

MR. CROCKETT: Yeah. 1In the states that
we’'re currently operating in, the answer is, no, we're
not required to, and, so, the conmmunity needs assessnent
we do is nostly working through with our physicians and
our Advisory Boards, in ternms of accessing the
information that’'s needed.

M5. MARTONE: Ckay, so, it’s not like a
community health needs assessnent that’'s required by the
federal governnent, per se, every three years?

MR, CROCKETT: Yeah, not as how you're
defining it or howit’s currently being operated in
Connecti cut, no.

M5. MARTONE: Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Is there a
specific docunent that's created by PMH with respect to
t hose findi ngs?

MR. CROCKETT: No. |It’s going to be a
local, |I nmean it’'s going to be done at the |ocal |evel as
part of the strategic planning process.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: (kay and what is
typically done in the other states on the local level, in
ternms of a, quote, unquote, “community heal th needs

assessnent ?”
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MR CROCKETT: Well, | nean, by
definition, we don't do a conmunity heal th needs
assessnent. The issue is, you know, froma comunity
perspective, the issue is are the services being
provi ded, and are they appropriate, and what are the gaps
associated with it?

It actually really starts with a process
of us noving away froma fee for service environnent into
a popul ati on managenent program

Wien Dr. Lew was nentioning the data
anal ytics associated wth it, as we start the process of
taking over the total responsibility of care for the
patient, it’s | ooking at the outpatient services that are
currently being provided, as well as the inpatient
services and the tertiary care.

And, so, when community nenbers are having
to |l eave their community to get those services el sewhere,
because the hospitals can't provide it or they don't have
the outpatient resources for it, then we look at, if it’'s
onesie, twosie, the answer is no, but if there's a
substanti al anmount of the conmunity that needs to go
outside of the comunity and travel outside of the
comunity, then that’s a, fromour perspective, a need

Wi thin the conmmunity that’s currently not being provided
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by -- it may be even not even just us, even our
conmpetitors, if they' re having to | eave the comunity.

From our perspective, it starts off with
this. What does it need to do to coordinate, actively
coordinate the care of the patient and have the community
menbers not having to | eave the conmmunity, and that’s,
froma data anal ytics perspective, that’s where really we
start the work at.

DR LEW Kevin, let ne give you a
practical exanple. Again, we tal ked about [ ocal
physi ci an Boards, and they have respective commttees.

W will ook at -- we have data, and we
can | ook at where patients are going for their care.
They’ re showing up in certain energency roons, and then,
as we mgrate to these val ue-based contracts and you get
nore data, you can see that -- let’s say you have 10
primary care physicians and 1,000 patients attributed to
those 10 doctors. That nmay be only a snall percentage of
those patients are actually staying locally for their
care, and they're having to go further away for their
care.

We have the ability to |l ook at that data,
and, so, we have to create better ways to nake sure that

they can cone in and stay in their towns and not have to
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cross this river that everybody is tal king about, and,
so, that, again, is ook to see should we open an urgent
care? Should we be reaching out to these patients and

| et them know that we can offer transportation, so it
really starts grass roots a lot of tinmes, but supported
by data, so the local docs are hearing that their
patients are ending up el sewhere, so we cone in and
support themand figure out the solutions to keep
everybody in the conmmunity and not have to cross that
river.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Ckay, thank you
for that, Dr. Lew. | appreciate that. Wuat |I'’magetting
at is, yesterday, there was testinony that PVH w |
support ECHN wi th respect to community heal th needs
assessnents for | think it was through 2018. Correct ne
if I’ mwong.

What happens after that point? Wat is
submtted to OHCA, if this were to be approved, in terns
of a community health needs assessnent? And there may
very well be you Il continue to support them and they
will continue to submt a community heal th needs
assessment .

Absent a formal conmmunity heal th needs

assessnent, what does OHCA | ook at to ensure that the
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needs of the comunity are being nmet and pl anned out?

DR LEW Well | would say, you know, OHCA
shoul d | ook at naking sure that the care is staying |oca
and it’s not |leaking to other states or other towns
within the state.

| would say that OHCA should | ook at the
| evel of patient satisfaction, |ook at the outcones, | ook
at the quality neasures within the population that’s
bei ng nmanaged.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Ckay. Al
right, thank you

DR LEW Sure.

MR LAZARUS. | have a foll owup. Now
you've been in Rhode Island for two years, right?

DR LEW Two years in June, yes.

MR LAZARUS. Have you conducted a CHNA
there? Has PMH been involved in doing CHNA there yet?

DR LEW A community needs --

M5. VOLPE: Yeah.

MR CROCKETT: Not a formal one, as it’s
bei ng defined here.

MR LAZARUS: Ckay. The way you’ ve
defined it, has one been done, conducted there?

DR LEW On, yes. Absolutely. Yeah.
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When | spoke to the percentage of | eakage outside of the
service area, a |lot of business and patients were going
out of network and going to other systens, and now t hat
we have data and figuring out a way to reach out to
patients, we’ve actually doubl ed the anmount of patients
that are comng now to our systemand not having to go
outside for their care.

And as part of the pilot that we’ re doing
with the state of Rhode Island, very closely, as the
popul ati on gets nmapped through the health plans and
assigned to our network, we have to absolutely nake sure
that there’s the behavioral health, the nedical health
conmponents, and we have to work with the conmunity
clinics. That's being | ooked at very cl osely.

MR, LAZARUS: Wuld you be able to provide
us a copy of an exanple, say, from Rhode Island that we
coul d perhaps |l ook at to get an idea of what you're
t al ki ng about, the analytics?

DR LEW Sure.

MR, LAZARUS: Because we understand the
community health needs assessnent, as it’s perforned in
Connecticut, and we're trying to understand PVH s
definition of the conmmunity needs heal th assessnent.

DR LEW Steven, when you want the
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report, what information, |ike what questions would you
want answered, so | can try to get the right --

MR LAZARUS. Wll is there a report
that’'s created, generated that tells you the needs of the
conmmuni ty?

M5. MARTONE: Because |ike what we
typically see, say, in the community health needs
assessnent filed by the hospitals, you know, they hire a
consul tant, and they have partners and conmunity
providers that are part of this big work group, and they
may do phone surveys, they nmay consult with different
partners, and they assess the needs of the area, and, so,
then they nmake a |ist of what they' re recomending, in
terns of what needs to be done in the area that’'s not
certainly being done, in terns of unnet need.

MR. CROCKETT: In addition to what Dr. Lew
was nmentioning, and this was done in conjunction with
some of the work that the I PA part of our division was
doing, as well as our |ocal Advisory Board, that two
additional areas that were being underserved within the
area was OB services, as well as cardiac care.

And, so, as part of that analysis,

Charter CARE has recently submtted applications to the

Departnent of Health in Rhode Island for those services
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to be perforned at Charter CARE, and, as part of that
process, there was a needs assessnent that was conpl eted
that woul d be consistent with how you' ve outlined it, so,
fromthat perspective, we would be willing to provide you
with the application that shows the needs assessnents for
t hose servi ces.

The needs assessnent, from our
perspective, is an ongoing issue. W don’t do it, you
know, once every three years, do it once every four
years. It’s kind of nore of a living, breathing process
as we go through popul ati on nmanagenent, so what | woul d
consider for this first two-year process, this would be
kind of our first step in |ooking at those needs, but I
think it's substantial when you |l ook at it.

M5. MARTONE: W want to ensure that the
comunity is involved. W want to nake sure that
physi ci ans, providers, other providers in the conmunity
are involved. That's all we're looking for really, in
ternms of this assessnent, so it’s not just your
assessnent, but it’s the community’s assessnent, and
that’s what we’'re trying to ensure here, that we want to
see an inplenentation plan that actually shows what
you' re going to do, how you're going to inplenent it, who

is going to be involved init, and when it’s going to be
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done.

So if you' re identifying behavioral health
as a need, then we want to see a detailed plan, in terns
of how you're going to do that. GCkay.

MR LAZARUS: So that’s sonething you have
an exanpl e of.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Yeah. The Rhode
| sl and application you nentioned that you're willing to
submt, why don’t you provide that?

M5. VOLPE: To be responsive to you, we
will look at that. It may be a needs assessnent, |ike
we’ ve seen wth other CON applications fromconsultants,
and that isn't what you want.

M5. MARTONE: Thank you.

M5. VOLPE: So | think, just so there' s no
m sconmuni cation, let us go back and | ook and see if
t here have been an assessnent, based on the description
you' ve provided, and we will research that.

As has been stated in testinony, as a for-
profit, they're not required to do a traditional
community health needs assessnent, because that is a
creature of tax exenpt hospitals and a conpliance issue,
and it’s expected that OHCA woul d get that response,

because it’s required of tax exenpt hospitals.
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So | et us go back and see if, in fact,
we’ ve done an assessnent simlar, along the |ines that
you' re | ooking for, okay? Because | think, and | don’t
know this for sure, but if we were to produce the Rhode
Island one, | don't think it’s what you d be interested
in, because it could be nore of a consultant needs
assessnent that we all are famliar with that many of the
hospitals here use to support a service they want to
inplenent, so it’s not different, but I think it is
different, in terns of what you’ re asking for.

M5. MARTONE: Ckay, thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you,
Attorney Volpe. And if you do have sonething that you' re
going to submt, that will be Late File No. 9.

M5. VOLPE: Correct. Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: If you do not
have one, please send us a letter to that effect.

M5. VOLPE:  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: | had a couple nore
issues | wanted to touch on out of the public comentary,
and | know you may feel that |ike you ve addressed this
issue in sone detail in your materials and | ast night and

per haps sone today, but, clearly, there remains a
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guestion the mnd, at |least to sone of the people in this
room who spoke to us, Ms. Burke and others, about why
ECHN did not partner with one of the [ocal health
systens, who are all non-profit.

|’d be interested, maybe Dr. O Neill or
Ms. Dorin, to hear. Perhaps you could address that.

M5. DORIN. So, as nentioned, we’'ve been
involved in this process since Decenber 2011. Wen we
first undertook the decision to seek out a partner, we
actually established five criteria.

The criteria that we were |looking for in a
partner was whether or not that partner would bring
organi zational strength and capability, whether they had
a strategic vision for serving the health care needs of
our market, Manchester, Rockville, Vernon and the
surroundi ng towns, whether or not they had the financial
strength to be able to help us with our debt, and whet her
or not they would actually be able to inplenent the deal.

It’s probably not a surprise. | nean we
got proposals fromtwo of the |larger hospital systens
within the state, and, for a variety of reasons, those
didn't fit the criteria.

Two of them we woul d have significant

i npl enment ation risks, because of anti-trust issues. W
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felt, considering the five criteria, in conjunction with
the visits that we nmade to California and to Rhode Island
and the culture that we could actually see and feel in
those facilities and fromtal king to Prospect, that
Prospect was, by far, the best fit for us.

The process that we went through was
extensive. It took along tine, and | feel very
confortabl e that we’ ve nmade the right decision

As | nmentioned | ast night and today, |
live in Manchester. |[|’ve lived there for 40 years.
want to be able to ook nmy friends and famly in the eye
when | see themin the | ocal supermarket, which is right
around the corner fromwhere |I live, that we have nmade
the right decision, and | feel that we have. | have no
qual ns, what soever

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: | appreciate that, and
| think, in fairness, it is worth probably pointing out
that, originally, the transaction that you initially
sought was w th Vanguard, which becane Tenet, which did
have, as a participant in that transaction, the Yal e- New
Haven health system is that correct?

M5. DORIN. Right.

MR. ZI NN ROMHORN: And then, to the point

that you make about anti-trust concern, | think, to
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clarify that reference, | think what you re suggesting,
and you can correct nme if I"'mwong, is that were you to
partner with an existing health care systemin
Connecticut, you woul d be reduci ng the nunber of
conmpetitor health systens in the state, as opposed to
partnering with a systemthat doesn’'t currently have a
presence in the state. |Is that your point?

M5. DORIN: Correct.

MR ZINN ROMHORN:. Dr. O Neill, did you
want to answer?

DR ONEILL: If I can just add, in the
| atest round, we had offers fromHartford HealthCare and
Trinity, the for-profit entity that has recently acquired
St. Francis.

In the case of Hartford HealthCare, it was
not an acquisition of ECHN. Their nost recent offer was
a partial purchase of sone of our nost profitable |ines,
nanely, our VNA and they didn't offer to diffuse our
debt or take on our pension liability, so it was an offer
that we thought was financially not feasible.

Added to that was the anti-trust issue.

W were advised by | egal counsel and Hartford was advi sed
by their legal counsel that the |ikeliness of an

acquisition deal would be very low froman anti-trust
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st andpoi nt ..

In other words, we woul d be requested by
the FTC to have a second opi nion, which would delay it
anot her year, and the |ikelihood of it being denied was
relatively high, so we felt we didn’'t have enough tine to
go through that process, even if we wanted to go the
Hartford Health route.

In the case of Trinity and St. Francis, it
was based on two issues that we felt that it was not
feasible. The first was wonen’s health issue. W felt,
being part of a Catholic system would significantly
reduce access to wonen’s health for residents in our
market, in our 19 towns east of the river, and we heard
strenuous objections fromour obstetrical departnent and
froma nunber of community nmenbers, that that was not a
good alternative for eastern Connecticut.

Added to that was we had an issue with the
way Trinity' s managenent woul d manage ECHN east of the
river. W’ ve requested, but we did not get the
assurances that we needed, that the nmanagenent of our
heal th systemwould be in the best interest of eastern
Connecticut, as opposed to the best interest of Trinity
corporate and St. Francis in Hartford.

So those are the reasons, basically, that
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we deci ded that Prospect was the best option for us.

M5. DORIN. And if | could just add one
other thing to that? Again, when we set out on this
sel ection process, what we wanted to nake sure was that
care was accessible, affordable to this part of
Connecti cut.

As many of the individuals, who comented
today, maintaining health care locally is very inportant,
and our feeling on the Transaction Commttee and, also,
on the Board was that, if we were to partner with
Hartford HealthCare or Trinity, St. Francis, that, bit-
by-bit, year-over-year, services would be taken out of
this market and brought into Hartford, so our goal in
sel ecting a partner would not have been satisfied by
seeki ng one of those as our ultinmate partner.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you for that.
"1l ask a question that | asked last night, and it
reflects sone of the commentary that we received here
this evening, about the continuing engagenent of the
hospital systemw th the communities beyond perhaps the
Advi sory Board, and | think what that question reflects
is what you al ready know and what you’'re here again
tonight, which is that there’'s a real sense of value in

the communities for these hospitals, alnost a proprietary
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sense that the hospitals are a comunity asset.

What 1'd | ove to hear you address is, and
maybe the way to address that is both to tal k about what
the | ocal Advisory Board will -- howit will be enpowered
and constituted, but, also, other thoughts that you woul d
like to share with the fol ks here toni ght, about how the
communities will be able to continue to have that sense
of engagenent with the hospital going forward.

MR. KARL: Thank you. Perry, we had the
di scussion this norning about that exactly, because |
know t hat was brought up

So how it works tw ce per year, and we're
happy to go forward, actually, and open it up nore, is we
do sem -annual updates to our corporators.

We bring themin, 300 people, feed them
dinner. That way, we know they’ d cone, and we give the
state of the onion, State of the Union. W speak about
truly, you know, what the organization is going through.
W’ ve educated them over the past four and a half years
about where -- what struggles we' re having.

We educate them on, obviously, on the
Af fordabl e Care Act, the detail of the Affordable Care
Act, really noving towards val ue care, so on and so

forth.
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What | see going forward and what |’ mvery
confortable doing is holding two open forunms, comunity
foruns per year, perhaps one in Manchester, one in
Rockville, inviting the public to come to them to give
thema State of the Union on how the organization is
performng, review what’'s new in the organi zation, what’s
happeni ng, what’s been invested in the comunities, and,
you know, truly educate them and educate them on how
rapidly health care is changing, and |let ne just add one
thing to that, and we spoke about this this norning.

| hear the conmmunity | oud and cl ear.
Health care 10 years ago, 60 percent of our revenue and
our volune was inpatient. Forty percent was outpatient.

Seventy percent of the revenue that cones
into the organi zation now, ECHN, is anbulatory, is
out patient, so the way we think of hospitals of the past
is conpletely different than how they truly function
t oday.

If you |l ook at a Rockville hospital and
you | ook at a Manchester hospital, 10 years ago our
census -- we have |icensed beds of 300 at Manchester.
Ten years ago, you know, we’re running 200 and sonet hi ng
beds over there. W have a 100-bed hospital here. Ten

years ago, we were running 80 patients. W now run about
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36 here, and we run about 110, 115 at Manchester.

There’s nothing wong with that. It’s
because, 10 years ago, you were admtting patients when
they didn't need to be admtted. Technol ogy has changed,
has changed dramatically, and | think that’s what’s
getting lost in the public, and shane on us for not being
able to educate themwell enough, so they better
understand that, and, so, you know, | would commt to
doi ng that on an ongoi ng basis.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you

DR. O NEILL: Just to build on that, we
have, in our not-for-profit, governance structure right
now. W have 300 corporators, and | think we do actually
a pretty good job of educating them

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Coul d you just explain
what a corporator is?

DR. O NEILL: Well a corporator in our
governance structure is the body of people that governs
the organi zation, that elects the trustees and approves
any maj or decisions, such as a sale of the organization.

The corporators historically were the ones
who gave noney to build the hospitals, and, froma
gover nance standpoint, that’'s how t hey’ ve been worked

into the system so, as Peter said, we neet with themon
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a regular basis. Many of them serve on our conmttee
structure, and I think we do a pretty good job of
educating them as evidenced by the fact that, when we
went through this process of explaining to themwhy we
needed to be acquired, and then we went through the whole
thing with Tenet, and then we went through the nost
recent iteration wth Prospect, 98 percent of them
approved the acquisition, and they’'re independently-
m nded people, just like the fol ks, who have cone in
today to talk to us.

You can’t please everyone. You can't
pl ease all 300 of them but a 98 percent approval rating
| think is a testament to the fact that we have educated
themover tinme, and that they do see the wi sdomin our
course of action.

So going forward, even though, in a for-
profit governance structure, we wouldn’t have 300
corporators, we would still see the value in neeting with
community nenbers on a sem -annual basis to do basically
t he sane process.

MR REARDON:. If | could just make a quick
comment, Peter and Dennis? |’ve had the privilege of
attending two of these corporator neetings, and alt hough

you' re right, there’ s education that goes on in one
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direction, believe ne, there are no bashful people at
t hese neetings. There's education that goes both ways.
And | said yesterday, and I'I| say it
agai n today, as nmuch as we at Prospect want to be part of
this community, we will never know this comunity as well
as the community nenbers do, and, so, we want your input,
and the idea of a Town Hall neeting a couple of tinmes a
year and open it up to nore than just corporators is a
terrific idea, | think, so | think we would support that.
MR. ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you, Tom Tom
| appreciate that, and | think what I’'ll ask to hear from
you guys on the Prospect side of the table is the
community does, as you say, know the fol ks on this side
of the table. They don’'t know you, just |ike you don't
know t hem
Were this transaction to be approved, do
you have a commtnment to have national |eadership from
t he organi zation participate in sone of these events or
ot her opportunities to hear directly fromthe comunity?
DR LEW Perry, simlar to what we tal ked
about yesterday, in terns of the nultiple touches through
t he nodel that our network managers woul d have with the
comunity, that’s one way that we would do it, to hear

the concerns of the community, as it relates to their
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care, but, to specifically answer your question, national
presence comng to these neetings, that would be fine.
|"d | ove to.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Ckay, thank you
Doctor. I’'ll raise it here, because you heard it, and
it’s the issue about |ocal taxation. Nowit’s not part
of our review. It’s beyond the scope of our review,
obviously, and, currently, as a non-profit, that your
organi zation is not locally taxed, 1'Il give you the
opportunity to address what Prospect’s plans are with
regard to tax abatenent issues.

MR, REARDON:. Shall | respond to that,
Mtchell? First of all, | heard the coments |ast night,
and | heard them agai n today.

| think there's, frankly, a conplete
m sconception, as to what we have in mnd here, and |’ ve
read it in the press, too, and | just think there's a
m sconcepti on.

Ri ght now, ECHN does not pay taxes.
They’'re a non-profit. On day one, ECHNis a for-profit
organi zation and will pay taxes. It wll pay sales
taxes, it will pay personal property taxes, and they wll
pay real property taxes.

W have approached both Vernon and
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Manchester, and they're awaiting a proposal fromus, and
we W ll submt a proposal. | can’'t get into the details
of what that proposal will be, but what | can tell you
is, in Rhode Island, what we did there was we | ooked at
the pilot paynents.

The pilot paynents are the paynents that
the state nmakes when you have a |l ot of non-profits in
your town, and it’s not 100 percent of what the property
t axes woul d be.

And what we’ve done in Rhode Island is we
started out with both Providence and North Providence
with the pilot paynents being a floor for what we would
do.

And, by the way, pilot paynents, from
everything |1’ ve heard, they're not guaranteed next year,
or the year after that in this state, because everything
we’ve heard is it’s not a question of whether, but when
there wll be cuts to cities and towns.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: And, by the way, pilot
paynments is a paynent in |lieu of taxes that a
muni ci pality woul d receive --

MR. REARDON: Right.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: -- and sone

conmpensation for having non-taxed property within its
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Boar d.

MR. REARDON: Right. So what we did in
Rhode Island with respect to property taxes was to make
sure that the cities and town were nmade whol e, and then
we ranped up fromthere, and the idea was that, to add a
huge tax burden on top of an organization that’'s already
in trouble is a trenendous struggle, and, so, what we’ ve
asked for is breathing space to nmake the organi zati on get
heal thy again, so that we can ranp up to full property
taxes, as well as sal es taxes and personal property
t axes.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you for that.
We heard a statistic, and | can't -- I'mnot famliar
with its source and | can’t vouch for it, but there was a
statistic that 49 of the 50 (coughing) health care
systens are for-profit.

"1l give you the opportunity to talk
about costs within your system | think you ve touched
on it sone tonight. Maybe, Dr. Lew, if you want to?

DR LEW Yeah. 1’Il just add to that.
In the markets that we are in, we are considered the
| oner cost hospital systens.

As | shared earlier, you know, we serve a

| ot of underserved areas, but even in communities, where
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they’ re not considered underserved, we’'re considered a

| oner cost hospital, and we see oursel ves, because we
think we are able to produce better outconmes, as very

hi gh val ue, because you have conpeting health systens
that will cost double, and it’s probably simlar here, so
you’' re payi ng doubl e, but we think we can get as good or

better outcomes, so |l don't think we're in that 49 out of

50, Perry.

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: | appreciate that.
That’s all | have, specifically. | want to, while we're
gat hered here, give you the opportunity. | know you're

payi ng attention to what the public reaction is, both in
our conmments that we received, but in coverage in the
medi a.

|f there’'s anything el se you want to take
the opportunity to address, | think, in fairness, I'm
happy to give you that.

DR LEW | would just like -- is this the
final thing, Perry?

MR ZINN ROMHORN. |'msorry to say to
the folks in the back that there was a headshake in
response to that question. (Miltiple conversations) |If
you want to save wap-up commentary for the end, you can

do that. I'mall set. Thank you.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: (kay, now we're
going to nove to OHCA' s questions. M. Lazarus?

MR, SALTON: Hold on. Are you going to
et the AG finish their questions?

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED:  Sure.

MR SALTON. kay.

MR. ZINN ROMHORN: | may have indicated
we were all set, Henry. (Laughter)

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: W' Il go back to
the Attorney General’s Ofice for nore guestioning.

MR SALTON: One observation | just want
to make is that fol ks should understand that, yesterday,
we had al nost six hours of hearing, of which about five
hours was presentation and questions fromthis panel, so
there were a |lot of detailed questions that we covered
yesterday, and sone of those detail ed questions we' re not
repeating today, so that we don’t use all of the tinme of
peopl e here and test their patience.

| do have just a handful of things that |
want to ask for. Yesterday, you spoke about, in response
to the quality issues in California, that you' ve brought
in this new corporate | eadership, the four new corporate
officers, and you indicated that’s not the sumtotal

that those individuals will have staff and resources to
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support their work and oversight of quality of care.

And you indicated, | think, that you re
going to provide us sone CVs for those individuals. W'd
also i ke details on the supporting staff and resources
budget noney, whatever, that you have allocated to that
part of your corporate office.

MR ZINN ROMHORN: Is that a late file?

MR SALTON: As a late file.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That will be
Late File No. 10.

MR. SALTON: You al so indicated that,
after the closing, | nean after the approval and the sale
is conpleted, there’'s going to be a strategic planning
process for how the $75 million in capital inprovenents
that serve the hospitals and the |arger conmunity are
goi ng to be expended over the next five years.

| f you have, | assune you ve done this in
your other acquisitions, give us a detailed description
of how that strategic health planning process wll take
pl ace.

Who is involved? Wo is at the table?
What input you're going to get, and who exercises
authority, or has a vote on how that plan will be done?

| understand that you can’'t tell us
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specifics of where every dollar is going to be spent, but
at least, right now, we'd |like to know what that process
i's, so we understand how deci sions are going to be made.

O particular concern is that we know,
fromthe hospital yesterday, there are substanti al
mllions and mllions of dollars in needs on the canpus
that need to be addressed, so we would like to know -- |
woul d recommend that you submt as a late file, also, a
description of that process.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That will be
Late File No. 11.

MR SALTON: |I'mtrying to go through this
real quick. Nunber three is we’'d ask ECHN i f you coul d
give us also a list of those capital inprovenents on the
canmpus that you think are critical to be done in the next
two to three years that would affect patient care if
t hey’ re not done.

| understand there’s always a desire to
i nprove the cosnetics of a hospital to attract patients,
but I think what we’'re really tal king about are capital
i nprovenents over the next two to three years that are
critical to patient care.

MR KARL: W& will do that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That will be
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Late File No. 12.

MR SALTON. kay, so, then | want to ask
just a couple nore questions. One is, Prospect and the
hospitals gave sort of a little bit nore detailed
description or variation on this side letter that says
that the ECHN quality programis going to be maintained
over the next two years, and it was a little bit
di fferent description than we heard | ast night, and we
understood that you guys wanted to kind of regroup and
provide us a little bit nore thorough description, but I
just want to nmake sure that -- ny understanding is that
the side letter, as witten, still governs, and there
hasn’'t been any change to that, based on what you said
t oday.

M5. DORIN: Correct.

MR. SALTON: (Ckay, now, the other question
| have is | understand there are going to be two Boards,
and, first, I'd like to know, and | don't think it’s been
very clear, exactly, when you guys decide to create these
two Boards, how are nenbers going to be sel ected and
pl aced on a |l ocal Board, and who is going to do the
sel ecti on?

DR. O NEILL: | can answer that. CQur

intent is to follow the current process, whereas we have
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one Board that acts as a mrrored Board, because there's
two hospitals, so we open the book for Rockville
Hospital, open the book for Manchester Hospital, and
that’s how we carry this through, so it’s two Boards, but
it’s truly one, okay, because that’'s what we currently
have now. If not, you d be having Board neeting after
Board neeting, so we streanline that, because we’ve been
consolidated for 20 years, so that’s one.

How we woul d pick the new Board and what
our plans were was to go out to our corporators, |ook at
our active corporators, look at the diversity of the
towns that we currently live in or they currently serve,
and then nmake sure that we have a bal ance of not only
cultural diversity, but diversity in their careers;
sonmeone from Hi ghl and Park Market, soneone from
Manchester Community Col |l ege, and so on and so forth, and
we woul d sel ect that through our corporators, but we
woul d be open to other ways to do it. That’'s how we’ ve
done it in the past, and that’'s how we plan on conti nui ng
doing it.

And the way Prospect sets up their Boards
that | nentioned yesterday, there will be five physicians
and five community nmenbers, and what | would recomend is

that we woul d keep two of the current Board nenbers on
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the new Board, just for continuity, but bring on three
brand new community nenber Board nenbers, and then five
physi ci ans woul d conme fromthe comunity, again, diverse,
that would come fromthe I PA that currently practice in
t own.

MR. SALTON:. (Ckay and, so, is that also
Prospect’ s under st andi ng?

MR. CROCKETT: It is.

MR SALTON: And who nmakes the sel ection
of the physicians?

MR CROCKETT: The selection of the
physicians will cone froma recommendation fromthe CEO
and then woul d be approved by corporate.

MR SALTON: kay and as far as the
comunity nmenbers go?

MR. CROCKETT: Recommendati on, once again,
fromthe CEQ and then approved by corporate.

MR SALTON: And what woul d be the
criteria for corporate approval of Board nenbers?

MR. CROCKETT: Making sure that it’s
di verse and well -represented and not overloaded. It’s
just a check and a bal ance, nothing, other than that.
It’s the sanme criteria that they go through their

selection, as well, and just a validation that it was
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diverse and it’'s appropriate.

MR KARL: If | just m ght add, also, when
you commt, as you are probably aware, | just want this
for the record, if you commt as a Board nenber, you' re
commtting not only to a nonthly neeting, but you re
commtting to being on call when issues arise.

You al so commt to serving on severa
committees, so it is a significant, significant tine
commtnent that is a volunteer tinme conmmtnent, which
will continue, so it isn't easy finding Board nenbers,
si nply because they spent nornings, evenings at the
hospitals, at VNHSC, at Wodl ake, and, so, we are very,
very careful when we | ook at our corporators to see,
again, to nake sure they' re diverse, but also can afford
the tine to volunteer, because if you mss a neeting or
two, you're conpletely out of it, and, so, it’'s a very
f ocused process.

M5. MARTONE: Do the Board of Trustees
al so weigh in on the community nenbers that are chosen?

DR O NEILL: Yes. Currently, the Board
of Trustees has a CGovernance Conm ttee.

M5. MARTONE: Ckay.

DR. O NEILL: Made up of trustees, and the

Governance Comm ttee goes through an iterative process
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every year adding corporators, letting corporators cycle
of f, and then selecting trustees, and then selecting the
committee Chairs and then the conmttee nenbers, so it’s
a process.

The Governance Conm ttee does all this
wor k, and then sends it to the full corporate Board for
approval, for review and approval.

M5. MARTONE: Ckay, thank you. Sorry,
Henry.

MR SALTON. kay, so, if you would al so,
then -- | appreciate your description on the record, but
i f you have sonet hing and produce sonething in witing
that woul d be the defined process for the | ocal Board
after the acquisition, we'd like that as a late filing,
al so.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: And that wll be
Late File No. 13.

MR SALTON: That’'s all | have. Thank you
for your patience. Thanks, Perry.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: (Good questions. Al
good questions. Now that definitively concludes the
Ofice of the Attorney CGeneral’s questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Ckay. |I’'I1 take

a pause here. W have sone questions. M. Lazarus?

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ w N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N PP O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

133
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 30, 2016

MR LAZARUS: Just a few questions today.
We're not going to have two hours’ worth of questions.

What |’mgoing to do is summarize a couple
of the things we tal ked about yesterday and just nake
clear that the understanding is correct on both sides.

First of all, PW said it has hired four
individuals at the corporate level to address the quality
of its 14 hospitals in the various states.

PVH has entered into a two-year assurance
agreenent, quality assurance agreenent with ECHN to
preserve ECHN s quality assurance prograns and enhance it
as it sees fit for two years, and you provided a copy of
t hat yest erday.

Al so, the local ECHN Board will have
authority to revise, update and enhance the ECHN s
quality programas it sees fit.

To that effect, could you just kind of
clarify, when you tal ked about authority, does that nean
it’s just sinply a matter of recommendati on, who will the
recommendation to be to, or do can they actually make any
changes?

For exanple, they need to inprove the
quality of the OR and needs $50, 000, is that sonething

that they can recommend, or is it sonething that they can
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actually nove forward with? That’s just an exanpl e.

MR, CROCKETT: Let nme best try to answer
that. The expectation that we had di scussed today, this
norni ng, actually, with ECHNis that the role of the
Advi sory Board is to have the responsibility for setting
the goals associated with it.

In conjunction with that, the role, then
of the corporate teamis to make sure that they’ re best
practices and that it’s aligned with best practices and
national patient safety goals associated with that.

Under neat h kind of that framework or that
unbrella, ny expectation is the goals that you did of an
exanpl e of inproving the quality in the OR would fit
wWithin that criteria, then the answer is yes.

| nmean | can't definitively say yes or no
on every exanple, but, underneath that unbrella of
exanple, then ny answer woul d be of course we’d want to
i nprove the quality of the OR

MR LAZARUS: But they would recommend
sonmet hing to the executive team to the corporation?

M5. MARTONE: They couldn’t just nove
forward with what he’s asking. The Board can’t just
decide to do that and nove forward.

MR. CROCKETT: Say that again?
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M5. MARTONE: Wat he’'s asking is if the
| ocal Board, ECHN Board, would have the authority and
enforcenent, say they decided sonething |ike that was
needed to be done to just nove forward and do that and
spend the funds that they wanted to spend, so our
guestion is what kind of other approvals would they need,
if any?

MR CROCKETT: So, to be clear, the role
of the Advisory Board is to set expectations. Wen you
think of quality, | think quality is a little bit of a
m snoner, because it neans 20 different things to 20
people, and it’s a very broad brush associated with it.

When we think of quality, it starts off
with what are the outcones of what is trying to be
achieved, and, at the end of the day, that’s really the
point of it, so, using your exanple, when we tal k about
t he outcones that are | ooking for, I’'m|ooking
specifically, then, for the outcones that need to be
achieved within the operating room and there’'s various
ways of how outcone can be achi eved that needs to be
achi eved.

| don’t think it’s actually the
appropriate role for the Board to identify the pathway to

achieve it. That’'s the role of the actual | oca
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managenent teamto say we want to inprove whatever
standard, and there’s nultiple ways to actually inprove
it, and here's, then, our recommendati on back to the
Board on how we’re going to achieve the outcone.

The point of it isis that it’s not the
process of achieving it as achieving the outcone. |It’s
the | ocal managenent teamis responsibility to actually
figure out howto achieve it. It may be 30,000. It may
be 100. There’'s multiple ways to achieve it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: But just a
followup on that. So if |ocal managenent decided, |ike
in Steve’'s exanple, that the OR needed to be inproved in
some manner, would the | ocal nmanagenent require PVH
cor porate approval before they could go ahead and do

that, or does the decision to take that action stay

| ocal ?

MR. CROCKETT: Well there’'s nmultiple
levels of -- let ne start off with, once again, when we
use the word quality, I think it’'s a very broad brush

that can be msinterpreted on multiple different ways,

starting off with issues associated with what’s

considered patient safety, life safety, CMS requirenents.
W don’t actually require corporate |evel

of approval associated with that. |In fact, we expect
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| ocal managenent to address and resol ve any of the issues
that are specific to patient safety, life safety, and
that’s a continuous | evel of readiness that we expect
24/ 7, 365, and doesn’t need approval associated with

t hat .

As it tal ks about the process, then, so,
fromthat |evel, the answer is no.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: kay, thank you.

MR. LAZARUS: That helps clarify. Thank
you. PWMH also said that they will nake every effort for
the new Chief Quality Oficer to nmake himavail able for
OHCA and the AG after she begins her position on Apri
4t h.

Consi dering that -- just be aware that,
for the adm nistrative purposes, this docket has been
consolidated with PMH s other application, where they' re
acquiring Geater Waterbury Health Network, so any
information that’'s collected in either one of these
records can be utilized towards any of the record.

Havi ng said that, can PVH have the new
Chief Quality Oficer available to testify in the
PMH G eater Waterbury Health Network hearing that we're
in the process of scheduling, which I believe we're

| ooking to schedule on April 26th?
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M5. VOLPE: | nean PMH is prepared, you
know, for purposes of late file, to provide detail on the
j ob descriptions, the CVs, you know, the qualifications
for all the representatives that are going to be in the
Quality Departnment, as well as an organi zational chart,
you know, and | think Henry today asked for budgeting.

| guess a question we have is what a new
person on the job now, if you have their qualifications,
you know their job descriptions, you know the
organi zational chart, you have the details that you need,
somebody, who is just hired, what are you hoping to
acconplish with speaking with them when they haven’'t been
wi th the organi zation?

MR LAZARUS. | do believe that yesterday
it was nade clear that this person/position was going to
be the person, who was going to be responsible within the
corporation for all the quality. The buck stops with
t hat person

M5. VOLPE: | nean I'll turn it over to
Von, but, in ternms of responsible for all the quality, we
want the |ocal Boards and the | ocal nmanagenent to be
responsi ble for the quality, absolutely.

The corporate is there as a resource and

to make sure that the local hospitals are inplenenting
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best practices, do have good quality plans and prograns
in place, and are inplenenting them so this personis
going to be responsi ble overseeing all of that, but we
want the responsibility for quality at the |ocal |evel
and we want the | ocal managenent and | ocal Boards to do
what they feel needs to be done for quality purposes.

MR SALTON: | think that, if this group
at the corporate level -- | nean it sounds to ne from
your presentations that the problens in California are a
mani festation of sone failures at the local |evel and
that you' ve now decided to backstop the |ocal |evel of
qual ity assurance by providing this corporate |evel
di vision on quality assurance.

M5. VOLPE: Correct.

MR SALTON: And | think that it would be
very useful for us to have a sense of who this Chief
Quality Oficer is, their judgnent, her judgnent, or his
j udgnent, the way she perceives what’s happened in the
past, and her approach on a going-forward basis, as far
as being soneone on the top of a pyramd, who has 14 to
18, 19 hospitals, and how she’s going to approach the
] ob.

And even though we don't expect, | don’t

t hi nk anyone expects her to say |’ve been on the job for
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two weeks and | have all the answers, her approach and
her judgnment, her sense of which way the conpass pushes
is a useful thing for us in nmaking sone determ nations
about the assurance of access and quality to care.

MR ZINN ROMHORN:  And 1’1l just add one
further point, that | think this is a discussion, whether
t hrough that way or another way, that’s worth conti nuing,
because |1'I|l confess that, even after today and
yesterday, there remains sone uncertainty in nmy mnd
about where the allocation of responsibility |ies between
corporate and the |l ocal Board on quality issues.

We had a discussion yesterday that we
didn’t hear about today, which was that there was sone
authority delegated to the Rhode |sland hospital s that
| ooked nore than advisory, but |ooked actually like a
del egation of actual authority on quality issues, so
think we need to -- | think, collectively up here, what
we’'re expressing to you is we need to have a very crisp
understandi ng, to the extent possible, of how quality
decisions are going to be all ocated between nati onal
| eadershi p and | ocal | eadership.

M5. VOLPE: And we understand that, Perry,
and we want there to be a crisp understanding, so, in

order to give that to you, | nmean do you want t hat
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detailed in witing, in terns of how the hierarchy is
going to work and the organizational chart, or are you
saying that your preference would be to have a person new
on the job show up? | mean how can we give you that

cri sp under st andi ng?

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: | think we should
order as a late-filed exhibit some further witten
expl anation on the allocation of quality responsibility,
and 1'll defer to OHCA and others on the request for live
testinony at the Geater Waterbury Heal th Network
proceeding in a couple of weeks.

| think we woul d approach that, | think,
wi th sone understanding that the person would be new to
the job, but she’s going to be backstopped by a group of
fol ks, who know the organi zation well, so I think it
woul d be hel pful to have both.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Just for the
record, the allocation of the quality responsibilities
will be Late File No. 14.

M5. MARTONE: And is that going to include
the chart of organization you just brought up, M chele?

M5. VOLPE: The organizational chart?

M5. MARTONE: Correct.

M5. VOLPE: Sure. Yes.
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M5. MARTONE: Thank you.

MR. CROCKETT: And in regards to the
guestion, yes, we wll nake her available for the
Wat er bury heari ng.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you

MR, LAZARUS: Thank you.

MR, ZI NN ROMHORN: Appreciate that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Just a fol |l ow up
on that. OHCA would request that this individual, this
new hire, attend the Waterbury hearing in person whenever
that is scheduled for. | believe that’'s the end of
April.

MR CROCKETT: Correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you.

M5. VOLPE: Thank you.

MR LAZARUS:. Can you pl ease provide us as
alate file copies of any and all deficiencies received
by PMH owned hospitals in Rhode Island for the past three
years? And pl ease include any plans of correction
related to those deficiencies.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That w Il be
Late File No. 15.

M5. VOLPE: Just a point of clarification

on that late file. | nean they haven’t owned the
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hospitals for three years, so, for Rhode Island, for the
time period for which Prospect has owned --

MR LAZARUS: Two years woul d be fine,

t hen, yes.

M5. VOLPE: Ckay.

MR LAZARUS: So |I'’mjust confirm ng that,
yesterday, we had di scussed the Quality Eval uati on Team
and they were going to provide docunentation | believe on
either reports that were devel oped or generated by that
commttee or any of the materials they had revi ened.

| believe we had tal ked about that
yesterday. Wuld you be handing those in as |late files?

M5. VOLPE: | think there was a late file
nunber assigned to those.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: There i s.

MR LAZARUS: Ckay. GCkay, so, just
clarifying.

M5. VOLPE: And the |ast one you
requested, M. Lazarus, that would be Late File 157

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That’s correct.

MR, LAZARUS: Thank you. Yesterday, we
had di scussed the eastern region quality | believe it was
initiative, or team or sonmething. 1It’s our

understanding fromyesterday that it’s not sonething
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that’ s been devel oped yet, but will get devel oped over
time. Do you have a tine frame for that devel opnent? |Is
it over the two-year period that you're looking, or is it
sonmething relatively soon after the closing --

M5. DORIN. 1'd defer to Von as the
Presi dent of the eastern region.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Renenber the
m cr ophone, pl ease.

M5. VOLPE: Can you repeat the question
for M. Crockett?

MR LAZARUS. Yesterday, we were
di scussing the eastern region either quality initiative
or teamthat’s been put together, and we understand that
it’s not put together yet, but will be, so I'mtrying to
get an idea of what tine frane would that be for that to
occur, and, also, what’s the goal and vision for that
teamor initiative?

MR. CROCKETT: Let nme start off with the
goal and the vision first, and then we’' ||l tal k about
i npl enent ati on.

The goal and the vision is that, as we
work with the four individuals, starting off with the
Chief Quality Oficer, of identifying what resources and

best practice is to be shared, as well as policies to be
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| ooked at, and it’s really nore at an unbrella |evel.

It’s a resource for the local teamhere to
have soneone to call upon and to |look at a specific care
practice, specific policy and understandi ng, so the point
of the east coast regional teamis to be an on-site
ability wwthin hours in a, you know, in a sanme tine zone
conversation to carry out the corporate initiatives, so
they’ re not doing anything i ndependently. It’s
underneath a corporate unbrella of the oversight and
check and a bal ance.

Froma tine perspective, | anticipate
that, at the tine of the close, we will have a regiona
Director of Quality at the tinme of the closure, and there
wi |l be support staff shortly thereafter, within two to
three nonths, but | would expect to have the | eadership
position fill ed.

MR KARL: If | can just, if you don't
mnd, just add to that? Wat we’'re currently doing now,
you heard fromLinda Qurici yesterday, our quality
per son.

What we’re doing right now, what we found
is extrenely helpful, is we're going to be noving onto
the same formatted score cards, so when you' re | ooking at

them you re |ooking at identical score cards, as it
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relates to outcones, whether it’s hospital -acquired, so
on and so forth.

And what we | earned from Rhode Island and
what they learned fromus is there’'s certain things that
we present better, and there are certain visua
scorecards that they present better, and we’'re hoping to
do the sane thing when Waterbury cones up, because,
currently at CHA, the Connecticut Hospital Association
as you know, there are certain quality itens, quality
nmeasures that we share between hospitals, but we don’'t
i ke sharing that type of information with conpetitors.

Being that we’'re not going to be
conpetitors, this is going to be of great help for us to
see why are you doing so well with falls in the
institution? How cone your falls are down so far? What
they heard fromus is that we have a Red Slipper Program
If the patient has red slippers on, that neans that
they’re at a fall risk, and, so, that’s how we’re goi ng
to play this going forward.

MR LAZARUS: Ckay, thank you. Just to
clarify, when you tal k about eastern region, you nean
it’s northeast, so it wll be Pennsylvania, New Jersey,
Rhode Island, Connecticut, or just specific to

Connecti cut and Rhode |sl and?
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MR, CROCKETT: It would include actually
New Jersey and Pennsyl vani a, so our east coast will be
true east coast.

MR LAZARUS: Ckay. | was just
confirmng. And, just confirmng, that yesterday you had
said regarding the conmunity benefit that PMH on the
record said that they would fund ECHN s comunity benefit
at the current levels after the acquisitions?

MR. CROCKETT: That was correct.

MR LAZARUS: Ckay and as regarding the
capital projects plan, can you tal k about sone tineline
for that one after the closing? | know there was sone
di scussion, but | wasn't clear on that.

MR SPEES: Sorry. Can you repeat the
guesti on?

MR LAZARUS:. Sure. The capital project
plan that's to be devel oped after the closing, what's the
time frane for that?

MR SPEES: Well, | nean, that's really
the responsibility of local managenent to inplenent, but
we woul d expect that the process would begin very quickly
after closing, and we’ll work wth the |ocal |eadership
teamon timng of conpletion process-w se.

MR. KARL: Steve, in speaking with ny
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strategi c planner and al ready havi ng conversations about
how we would roll this out, I would say, you know, after
closing, it would be about a six-nonth period for us to
devel op a conprehensive plan that woul d | ook out, again,
t hat woul d | ook out.

It’s very difficult |ooking forward in
health care, as you all know, because of the changes, but
the strategic plan would probably | ook out two to three
years, and then, again, it would be updated on a regul ar
basi s, as necessary.

MR, LAZARUS: Ckay, thank you.

MR. ZI NN ROMHORN: | believe the
testinony was that the anticipation is that the noney,

the $75 mllion, would be spent or committed within five

years.
MR LAZARUS: Carnen?
M5. CARMEN COTTO H . Carnen Cotto, OHCA
staff. | have sone questions also related to the capita

projects, but nore at the local level, so ny question
wi |l be addressed to you.

In the application on page 3224, indicated
that they intended to secure a loan for $5 mllion to be
spent exclusively on behavioral health expansion at

Rockvill e CGeneral Hospital as a capital project.
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Was the | oan secured, and, if so, will the
proj ect be conpleted by closing to increase the
comm t nent anount ?

MR KARL: The answer is, yes, the |oan
was secured. It falls under, obviously, our Behavioral
Heal th Departnent. |It’s an eating disorder center.
That’s the only one in the State of Connecticut that
woul d specialize in bulima and anorexi a.

And, yes, the |oan was secured, and the
construction, | can walk you over to Rockville, is
currently underway, and we expect it to be conpleted in
the late June -- first phase, neaning 20 beds, will open
in June, and then an additional 10 beds wll open in
Septenber, so it’s a two-phased approach, and it has no
affect on the purchase price.

M5. COITO But on the capital comm tnent,
it does? No? Just confirmng.

MR SPEES: Wll that’'s actually a
complicated answer that | can try. W’ve agreed to
assume the loan, the $5 mllion |loan, but the expectation
is the loan is currently secured by cash collateral, and,
so, if ECHN at cl osing has the cash collateral avail able
and delivers it to Prospect, then it has no inpact on the

capital conm tnent.
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If, in fact, ECHN needs the cash to
satisfy its obligations or for other reasons and doesn’t
deliver the cash collateral, the net difference would
actually reduce the capital conmtnent. In essence, we
woul d have pre-funded the capital comm tnent.

M5. COTTO  So, as you indicated, the
capital project is for a 30-bed eating disorder inpatient
unit for adol escents and adults. That was stated on our
page 2149, and, at page 2173, it was stated that
Rockvill e General Hospital has no other behavioral health
i npati ent service.

How was that service determned to be a
need, as conpared to a general psychiatric inpatient
unit?

MR. KARL: Approximately, and, Kim [|'d
have to go back to OHCA, but approximately five years
ago, we entered into a partnership, filed a Certificate
of Need, and received approval to open Wil den Behavi or al
Care East, which was an outpatient eating disorder office
or center in one of our South Wndsor buil dings.

W had al ways expected this to growto a
poi nt, because of the significant need that’s out in the
community relating to these types of eating disorders.

What has happened in that five-year period
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since they’ve noved in is they' ve expanded three tines at
the outpatient unit, and they are at capacity up at their
two inpatient units in Massachusetts, so, as a result,
they will manage the departnment. It will be under our
license, and it will be our staff.

They will hire the physicians, but it wll
be our staff taking care of these patients.

M5. COTTO One nore question related to
this issue. Wiat inpatient behavioral health capacity
does ECHN currently have, and what rel ationships do both
of its hospitals currently have with comunity-based
organi zations to maintain continuity of care/follow up
care regardi ng behavioral health and substance abuse?

MR. KARL: (Ckay, so, ECHN has an extensive
behavi oral care division. W have an inpatient adult and
adol escent | ocked unit at Manchester Menorial Hospital,
32 beds, 35 beds. | stand corrected.

W al so have an extensive partial day
program whereas those patients that graduate fromthe
inpatient unit go into partial day, until they are, then
rel eased back into the community, back into society.

W al so have an extensive anbul atory
program at 150 North Main Street. W have over 60,000

visits that we see at that outpatient center
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W al so have, believe it or not, we have a
day school in the basenent of Manchester Menoria
Hospital, and | et ne define what the day school is.

It’s those individuals, those sixth
graders to seniors in high school, that have behavi ora
issues that they' re unable to function at an everyday
hi gh school .

They are taught, as they would be in the
school systens, but they are taught at our organization
in the basenent, not because for any other reason than
that’s where the space is, but they are taught, and they
graduate. They actually graduate fromthat program
graduate wth a degree, a high school degree.

Those patients, those students, nost of
them are very active in our behavioral health prograns,
outpatient prograns, so that’s the behavioral health
pi ece.

And, again, we just recently opened an 11-
station |locked unit in our energency departnent at
Manchest er, because of the overflow of behavioral health
patients. W’'re in a crisis, as we all know, with
behavi oral health. W just opened, and, again, it’s
about $1.2 mllion behavioral health unit in our ED, to

hol d those patients there while they are waiting for the
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beds that are up on the unit to open up, and that was

done for patient safety, and, as inportant,

for enpl oyee safety.

it was done

You can inmagi ne, after m dnight, holding

patients in the enmergency departnent while you' re getting

Ms and car accidents comng in,

and then you have

behavi oral health patients not being properly cared for,

so that was done.

M5. MARTONE:

And can | just ask? Wre

any of these initiatives or prograns inplenented because

of the recomendati ons of the community heal th needs

assessnent ?

VR
M5. MARTONE:
VR
IVB.

MARTONE:

2

KARL: Absol utely.

Ckay.

KARL: Absol utely.

Al right.

KARL: And if | just may add, Kim

because | think Carnmen asked the second question, about

whet her it’'s opiates, or dr

ug abuse, or substance, |I’'m

sorry, substance abuse, yes, we, in fact, there’s a lot

goi ng on, but we al so have vol unt eer

prograns at both

hospitals, as it relates to substance abuse, whether it’s

al cohol , Al coholics Anonynous, or Narcotics Anonynous,

and we are in the process of, at this point
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Carroll is in the back, he can speak better, that we're
going to be doing hopefully a pilot programw th the Town
of Manchester, and then we’d like to involve the Town of
Rockville, as it relates to the heroin epidemc, nostly
because of the Fentanyl issue that’s out there currently,
so, you know, so, that all, obviously, you don’'t need a
community needs assessnent to recognize the problemwe’ re
having with the opiates.

As you know, Connecticut has nade the
decision, and correct ne if I"’mwong, Dr. Carroll, that
we wll no longer, at least in our hospital, be
prescribing opiates for any nore than seven days, and
what that has created is a significant issue associated
wi th heroin abuse and Fentanyl abuse, because these
patients are addicted, and they can no | onger get their
opi ates, so now they are going after that high, which is
heroin, so what we’ve created, by not providing
additional scripts, because our physicians now review the
statew de panel for each patient that gets a
prescription, they go onto a panel, so we wll not be
doing refills, which has now created our whol e other
i ssue, which we are now going to begin dealing wth at
this point in tinme. | hope that answered your questi on.

M5. COTTO M next question is in
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reference to the purchase price. |’ve seen through your
presentations that you' re only referring to the $105
mllion. Through the application process, there were two
scenarios that were introduced to us.

There were two scenarios submtted to us,
and you're only introducing one. Can you explain that?

MR. SPEES: Yeah. At the time of the
original subm ssion, there was the possibility that ECHN
was going to get an additional |oan, which was the
genesis of the alternatives. Wth the passage of tine,
it’s now -- that additional loan is off the table, so it
actually makes it much | ess conplicated, so we can dea
with just the $105 million scenario.

MR. KARL: Carnen, if | can answer that,
al so?

M5. COTTO  Sure.

MR KARL: W felt we nmay need a bridge,
because of the Connecticut state tax, so we were worried
about the operating cash, so we’'re going to go out,
borrow $10 million to carry us until this approval went
in place, but when we went to banks, they weren't all
that friendly about giving up sone noney, $10 million, so
it cane back off the table again.

M5. COTTO  Ckay. Page 3325, you stated
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that all the joint ventures, in terns of ECHN, were to be
transferred to PMH as part of the asset purchase were on
schedule for transfer. Could you provide an update on
the i ssue associated with the joint venture, venture
transfers?

MR KARL: [|'Il have Dennis MConville.

M5. COITO Yes. (kay.

MR. McCONVI LLE: So, yes, we have 12 joint
venture conpani es, and we have obtai ned consents in hand
for all, but the four joint ventures related to rea
estate that are under ECHN Enterprises, and those are in
process, and we shoul d have those prior to closing. |
don’t see any issue fromour partners.

M5. COITO |'mgoing to ask sone
guestions related to the assunption of debt and the
pensi on obligations. Your pre-filed testinony indicated
that, and you also nentioned it today, that nearly $75
mllion of ECHN s outstanding debt will be paid through
this transaction, which will free up $9 mllion of debt
service annually for ECHN

My question on the $9 mllion is, first of
all, how did you estimate that $9 mllion was the basis
for that? Wat was the basis for estimting the $9

mllion?
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MR SPEES: That information was given to
me by Mke Veillette, the hospital CFO

M5. COITO Is he avail abl e?

MR VEILLETTE: Ckay, so, Carnen, the $9
mllionis a function of the long-termdebt, primarily
t he tax-exenpt debt that we’ve had through CHFA and sone
nore recent direct placenents with TD Bank, the energy
| oan with Santander, there are a couple of other |oans,
as well as the annual paynent on the line of credit,
because we’ ve been paying down on the line of credit with
TD Bank, so we’ve been paying that down at about $1.8
mllion last year and this year, so that $9 mllion is
1.8 related to the line of credit, 7.2 mllion of annual
debt service related to all the other debt.

The remai ni ng annual debt is capitalized
| ease paynents, and that will be assunmed by Prospect.

M5. COITO Wich is? Wat’'s the total
now on that?

MR, VEI LLETTE: The total numnber on that
is in the neighborhood of around -- it’s around $3
mllion.

M5. COTTO Now that $9 million you expect
to be free up of $9 mllion annually. For what extended

period of time are you expecting that after closing? The
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first year? Two years?

MR, VEILLETTE: That’'s an average over in
i ke the next three years.

M5. COITO Three years? Ckay. Now
there’s been different anounts presented to us related to
the debt. In sone testinony, | heard 75, through your
presentation, it was 78, and the audited financi al
statenents indicated a different anmount

| just need you to confirmwhat is the
actual anount for the outstandi ng debt.

MR, VEILLETTE: If you go to our audited
financial statenment for 9/30/15, the total nunber between
what | would call traditional debt and then | ook at the
debt related to capitalized | ease obligations and then
the line of credit, that total nunber is around $90
mllion, if you don't take into account the assets, whose
use is limted, so paynents that we’'re naking as we're
goi ng through the year, so you' |l record debt on a gross
basis and liabilities, but then you will also be making
paynents on a nonthly basis, and it will be going into
what we call assets, whose use is limted, and then you
al so have a handful of asset accounts, debt service
reserve funds, and, so, that is netted.

Those funds woul d be part of the pay down
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towards the overall gross debt.

M5. COTTO Wich | did see the audited
financial statenments, and | saw, the total anount that I
saw was cl ose to 90, as you expl ai ned.

MR VEILLETTE: Right.

M5. COTTO Now, based on that, could you
pl ease -- what we’'re asking you to do is to reconcile
t hose nunbers with the revised Table 8 that was requested
yesterday by the Attorney General’'s Ofice.

MR, VEILLETTE: So we’'re doing that on a
mont hly basis, and, so, yeah, Gary and | spoke, and you
requested it yesterday.

M5. COTTO Yes. He requested a late
file. 1 want to nake sure that it’'s reconciled with
information --

MR, VEI LLETTE: W have both of those
pi eces of debt, if you will, broken out, so the long-term
debt, which gets paid down, is net of those other assets
| referred to, debt service reserve funds, assets, whose
use is limted, and then the capitalized | ease
obligations are in the assuned liability cluster on the
net proceed schedul e.

M5. COTTO Ckay. | have a question on

t he fundi ng pension obligations. Please explain PMH s
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plan for funding the $64 million pension obligation.
Wien wi |l that happen? R ght after closing? How wll

t hat be taking place, the funding of the $64 m I lion on
t he pension obligations?

MR SPEES: Yeah, so, the funding on the
pension plan wll continue post-closing, just as it does
now, and there are a host of very conplicated IRS
formul as that deal with how and when t he pension
obligations have to be satisfied, and it depends on the
return on the investnents that have been nentioned, as
well as I RS guidelines for what |evel of funding
currently exists.

M5. COITO Ckay. Noww ll you be able to
do the sanme for the pension, the $64 million cal cul at ed
cash flow associated wth that, like you did with debt?
Did you cone up with the $9 mllion that you'll free up
to use for capital projects? Could you provide us with a
cal cul ation that shows the financial benefit com ng out
of the $64 million cash flow and the cash flow that wll
cone out?

MR SPEES: | don't knowif | can answer
that question conpletely, as I’mnot entirely sure if the
l[iability, the unfunded liability is still carried on the

post - cl osi ng bal ance sheet of ECHN, or if it has now
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nmoved over to the corporate bal ance sheet of PVH so it’s
difficult for me to say how that’s going to be funded
going forward, and part of that is because the current
asset portfolio, as it is today, is not what it would be
traditionally if it were under an entity that was let’s
just say not in our status right now

So, in other words, what | nean by that is
our portfolio is entirely in fixed inconme, and that’s to
preserve any nore growi ng of that pension liability in
our bal ance sheet and not exposing it to potential sw ngs
in the equity market.

| woul d suspect that, post-closing, that
portfolio allocation would be re-exam ned, re-assessed,
and be converted to a nore traditional portfolio, so that
you coul d benefit froma nore diverse portfolio in the
| ong run and cl ose that pension funding gap, and,
hopefully, there will be sone inprovenent in interest
rates sonetine in the near future, because that is the
nmost profound i npact on the current status of that
fundi ng gap.

W have estimates currently, based on our
current portfolio, on what that funding requirenent is,
but for me to be able to say that there’s a -- those

nunbers are concrete, so to speak, | don’'t have the
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ability to do that, because | don’t know what's com ng,
interns of interest rate changes. | don’t know what’s
comng, in terns of potential future funding relief.

W’ ve al ready gone through four neasures
of pension funding relief just since 2009. It’'s possible
there could be even nore funding relief in the future
t hat coul d change the outl ook of pension funding
requi rements, cash funding requirenents for the years
2017 through 2021

| can tell you that, if you |l ook at that
right now, at this point in time, those nunbers are
projected to be sonewhere in the nei ghborhood of $17 to
$19 mllion when you get out four or five years.

| doubt that that would be the case in the
future, once that pension portfolio were reallocated in a
nore traditional nodel.

That’s a | ong answer, but that’s what |
can tell you about potential pension funding.

M5. COITO | guess what I'mtrying to get
at is what are you getting out of this benefit of PV
relieving you of the $64 mllion?

MR SPEES: Their ability to be able to
hel p us achieve a greater EBITDA cash fl ow performance,

so, like | said, I"'mnot sure if that funding requirenent
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comes fromthat cash flowor if it comes from anot her
source, but EBI TDA performance woul d be the reason for
bei ng able to absorb that potential funding requirenent.

M5. COITO And you cannot project that
for the next --

MR. SPEES: | can only tell you what |
have today. I|I'msorry. | can only tell you what | have
t oday, based on a projection on what our current nodel
is, based on our current portfolio.

M5. COTTO Could you submt that
information to us?

MR SPEES: W could submt that.

M5. COTTO  Yes, please.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That will be
Late File No. 16.

M5. COITO | have a question for M.
Crockett. In your pre-filed testinony, you indicated
that one of the financial benefits for ECHN rel ated to
this proposal would be that revenue collection will be
stream i ned through PVMH s system

Coul d you pl ease describe this revenue
col l ection process and el aborate howit will be
beneficial to both Manchester Hospital and Rockville
Hospital ?
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M5. VOLPE: |'msorry. Can you --

M5. COTTO The page?

M5. VOLPE: Yeah, the page. | just want
to make sure that was in M. Cockett’s testinony.

M5. COTTO  (Ckay, sure.

M5. VOLPE: As opposed to maybe M. Spees.

M5. COITQO  Sure.

M5. VOLPE: But we’'ll want to get your
gquestion answered, so go ahead and ask it.

M5. COTTO It’s page 3359.

MR. CROCKETT: So, froma revenue
stream i ne collection process, part of our efforts of
| ooking to assist ECHN, there’s many things we’'re hoping
to bring to the table, but one of themis the revenue
cycl e process.

For us, the revenue cycle process is
actually multi-faceted. It actually starts at the tine
of adm ssion. W look at, froman adm ssion perspective,
in making sure that, as they’'re registering the patient,
they’'re collecting the right information, in order for us
to actually bill and collect correctly.

Part of that is going through and | ooking
at the various -- if they don’t have insurance currently,

we go through an insurance verification process, where we
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| ook to see if they actually -- if they' re currently not
eligible, if they’'re currently not on Medicaid, that
they’'re eligible for Medicaid and they’' re uninsured, then
we W ll hook themup with an eligibility worker to get
theminsured through the Medicaid programfor the

uni nsured popul ati on.

For those that do have insurance, we're
maki ng sure that the information that is collected is
correct and verified and validated, so that, as we go
t hrough the billing process, that they can collect froma
char gi ng perspecti ve.

We go through in making sure that the
coding is accurate and that it’s correct, they' re using
the right codes nost often. Bills are either not paid or
deni ed, because people are using incorrect codes, or the
process for coding is incorrect, and, so, we will have a
team go through the validation, in terns of the coding
and maki ng sure that that’s accurate.

From a care perspective, it’s not unconmon
for bills to be denied associated with eligibility and
maki ng sure that, if they do have insurance and that the
care is being provided, that they don't do a pre-kind of
a verification of insurance, or that it’s just not being

approved t hrough what ever nmanaged care conpany i nsurance
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that they have, and, so, we’'ll have a process to naking
sure that, as the patients are in the hospital and
they’'re receiving the care that they’'re having, that it’'s
being validated and verified, and, really, it’s keeping

t he managed care conpani es up-to-date, in terns of what’s
happeni ng.

On the back end of the process, froma
billing perspective, we do work with sone vendors. W
al ways | ook to |l ook for |ocal vendors associated with it.
We usually look for either internally or externally the
expertise associated wth making sure that the billing is
done tinely, people don't wait six nonths to get a
hospital bill.

And |’ mnot saying any of these things are
applicable to ECHN. These are nore national practices
that we | ook to go through and i nprove.

W won’t be actually applying anything
that 1’ve just said. Part of our process is we wll go
t hrough and do an evaluation with what they currently
have and really | ook in areas where we can inprove upon
what they' re currently doing.

M5. COTTO  Ckay, thank you. Wuld you
like to add anyt hi ng?

MR. ALEMAN. The only thing that |, and
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Von was very thorough, the only thing I woul d enphasize
this is one area that we see as a core conpetency of
ours. W work very closely with all of our facilities,
and one itemthat | would want to enphasize is the
revenue cycle business office resides at the facility, so
that’ s not sonmething that we do centralized or from
another location. It resides in the facilities, and we
believe it operates nost effectively at the facilities.

We bring our best practices, our data-
driven tools for analytics to help theminplenent the
policies and practices, and nmake sure that we're
consi stent, you know, conpany-w de on how we do it.

M5. COTTO  Ckay, thank you. | just have
a couple of follow up questions fromwhat we tal ked about
yest er day.

MR ALEMAN.  Sure.

M5. COITO And the first one is related
to, when we tal k about PMH s ability to continue funding
ECHN in the future, as you still continue to acquire
hospitals that are in poor financial health, including
the New Jersey hospital, as you just acquired, you
indicated that you'll still be able to and, also, that
New Jersey is actually doing better now

MR ALEMAN: That's correct.
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M5. COTTO Could you el aborate on that
statenment? What are the financial gains?

MR. ALEMAN. Yeah, sure. It’'s been a
while, but when we first started being formally engaged
w th East Orange CGeneral Hospital, it was February of
2014, and | believe, if ny nenory serves ne, we signed
t he APA June of 2014, and, so, we were in the regulatory
revi ew process for well over a year and a half in New
Jersey.

Now when we signed the APA with East
Orange CGeneral Hospital, they were | osing approxi mately
about a mllion/tw a nonth, and we worked very cl osely
wi th the managenent team on sone of the itens that we’ ve
t ouched base on, such as revenue cycle and the busi ness
of fice, what Von went through in great detail

We worked very closely with themto just
i nprove those practices to ultimately ensure that the
facility is collecting what they have ultimtely earned
fromoperations, and, actually, over that period of tine,
bridge that gap fromthe nunber that | highlighted to
basically break even up to the point of close, and then
we | ooked for further inprovenent, so, as we take a | ook
at and we focus on, as you stated, financially-troubled

facilities, we worked to i nprove processes, so all the
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way up to the point of the close of the transaction and
beyond, that, certainly, the target is that they' re all
break even, hopefully, even doing better, or, if they had
positive EBITDA, that we’ ve even worked with themto

i nprove that perfornmance.

That is basically kind of our strategy. |
think we’'ve been fairly effective with that. | think we
have that sanme track record of turnaround in performance
at Charter CARE, certainly, East Orange, so that’s part of
what | reference when | say, you know, I'mfairly
confident, as we nove forward here, that none of those
acqui sitions are going to put a drag on our operating
cash flow or free cash flow.

| feel very confident in our projections
for not only follow ng through on our conmtnents to
ECHN, but every acquisition that we work through, and in
none of our cash projections do | enbed what the
proj ected cash projections are fromthat target, so, in
ot her words, in none of ny cash projections for the
commtnents for ECHN do | have in there any cash that may
be generated from ECHN.

In other words, they' re not paying for
their owmn conmtnents. It’s the |evel of conservatisml

think that | have in putting together those projections.

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

170
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 30, 2016

M5. COTTO  Ckay, so, the Pennsyl vania
acquisition, what is the status of that?

MR SPEES: So the Pennsyl vani a
acquisition is in the regulatory process. |It’s different
than in this state. There is no Certificate of Need, so
it’s with the Attorney General’s process currently, and
we expect that -- we're actually scheduling the public
hearing | think toward the end of this nonth, as well,
and we anticipate that that process, if it runs as

expected, will conclude around the sane tine as this

process.

M5. COTTO (Ckay. Let’'s see.

MR. SPEES: |1'msorry. The end of April.
That woul d be tonorrow, wouldn’t it? |’mreasonably sure

the hearing is not tonorrow

MB. COTTO You testified that the $75
mllion capital expenditures is not necessarily for just
brick and nortar, capital projects, but how rmuch of that
75 do you expect to actually invest on bricks and nortar,
because now we do have information that you submtted
that indicated that ECHN has $40 nmillion dollars already
identified as capital projects that it needs to address,
so wll it be accurate to say that, out of the 75, at

least 40 mllion will be set aside for those that they
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actual |y need?

MR SPEES: 1’|l elaborate. | think that
we appreciate the nature of the question, but I’'Il answer
it in the sane way | answered it previously, is that that
will be a product of the capital planning and strategic
pl anni ng process that we’ re going through, and, really,
totry to do it any other way woul d sub-optim ze the
result, and, so, it really needs to be a conprehensive
anal ysis of all of the needs.

There are imtations on capital, and, so,
there’s conpetition for capital, and unless it’s done
t houghtfully and thoroughly and with a big picture in
mnd, then it won’'t produce the best result.

MR ALEMAN: Yeah, and I’'Il just
el aborate. | think it’'s been addressed a few tinmes. W
| ook at those. W’re here to invest in ECHN and i nvest
i n Connecti cut.

We believe in our nodel, we believe in the
state, we believe in the system and we'll work very
cl osely with managenent on the best use of that capital
to grow the system

| go back to our Nix acquisition in San
Antoni o, Texas, that we acquired that froma for-profit,

and we actually had no capital commtnent as part of that
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transaction, but any capital commtnent that we have we

| ook at at as a floor, and even though with the Nix in
San Antonio we had no capital commtnent in first two
years, we invested over $20 million in the building out
of the ER and al nost the doubling of the behavioral
health facilities in infrastructure within the core
bui | di ng, building out other volune streans into the
hospital, | use that as an exanple of the investnent that
we made into San Antoni o, Texas to grow that system that
is our intent here, also, being able to break that down
at this point into specific, whether it’s bricks or
nortar.

The underlying thene is it’s to grow the
system It’s to grow ECHN. It’s to grow services and
all ocate the capital to the best neans to achi eve t hat
end.

M5. COITO  Ckay, thank you. M question
now is related to the nost recent data submtted to OHCA
quarterly data that was submtted within the past week
and | have sone questions on the difference between what
was submtted these past few days and what was originally
subm tted through conpl eteness, and this for ECHN

The subm ssion, the regi onal subm ssion

i ndi cated, for cash flow operations, indicated that, for
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fiscal year-to-date, 2014, ECHN generated $305 mllion

The subm ssion that we received past week,
past few days, yesterday, it has a difference of $200
mllion fromthat anount. | need soneone to explain to
me why is that so different?

MR, VEILLETTE: So, Carnen, in all candor,
the quality review or quality control on those reports,
they just were shared with nme it may have been two days
ago, and | found sone things in there that didn't appear
to be appropriate, correct, and | asked for ny teamto
take another look at it, and we found sone formula issues
in those reports, so | would rather not try to guess, as
to what changed, because | haven’'t conpared the previous.

| just knew, when | | ooked at a few of
them | knew there was an error, such as in days, days
and accounts receivable, for exanple, where you had
Manchester had an individual nunber, you had Rockville
had an individual nunber, and then the conbi ned nunber
didn’t nmake any sense, and then | asked a few ot her
qguestions, and then | conpared it to the audited
financial statenents, and | asked that we recheck every
nunber, so everything was re-checked, and there was sone
other -- | was assured that everything had been

corrected, but, quite honestly, |I can’t tell you, because
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| haven’t done a full reconciliation of what was
submtted originally and what was submtted after, so it
woul d be ny preference to respond to that as part of the
late filing.

M5. COITO The late file, yes. Yes, at
the late file.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: This w il be No.
17.

M5. COITO Ckay. | think we’' re al nost
done here. | just have one nore request or two nore
requests and we can go.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Wl l, to
clarify, she'll be finished.

M5. COTTO For ne. He's the one that
will decide that. Sorry. | apol ogize.

W tal ked about the $100 million avail able
f undi ng.

MR ALEMAN:  Yes.

M5. COTTO And you indicated that it’s
now i n excess of 60, not 1107

MR ALEMAN. That’'s correct.

M5. COTTO Ckay and, also, that the cash
flow, the free cash flow has increased 210 to 15?

MR ALEMAN: Correct.
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M5. COTTO  Through the process, we asked,
when we first heard about the 110 mllion in the free
cash flow, we asked for supporting docunentation for
t hose nunbers. Now they have changed. Could you pl ease
revise your formthat you sent us, the schedule that you
sent us? And that is Schedule R of the Decenber 11, 2015
conpl et eness responses.

MR ALEMAN:  Yes.

M5. COTTO Could you revise it, just to
make sure that it’s updated with the new correct anount?

MR ALEMAN:  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That will be
Late File No. 18.

M5. COTTO And then we have requested a
tabl e that includes EBI TDA, working capital,
stockhol der’s equity for three earlier prior
acqui sitions, N x, Roger WIIlians Medical Center and CQur
Lady of Fatima. That’s on page 3400.

| just have a question on one of your
footnotes. The footnote indicated that, it says that the
net benefit of governnment supplenental paynents in 2014
was hi gher than average, while the net benefit of
gover nnent suppl enental paynents in 2015 was bel ow

aver age.
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From an operational perspective, the
performance of Nix was slightly better in 2015 and ' 14.
Coul d you el aborate on those paynents, supplenenta
paynent s?

MR. ALEMAN. Sure. And this is related to
the Nix in San Antoni o.

M5. COTTO  Yes.

MR. ALEMAN: Their suppl enental program
the 1115 waiver, has a few different pieces related to
it, an unconpensated care conponent and a DSRI P
conmponent, of which they receive revenue.

The revenue conponent has been fairly
stabl e year-over-year. \Wat happened in the 2014 peri od,
there is an unrel ated expense, but it’s part of kind of
the programto be, and, for them it’'s called the
SOS( phonetic) expense, where they actually -- there are
costs associated with savings that they kind of carve out
of the systemw th sone other systens that they work
wit h.

Bottomline is those costs, in general
run about roughly about a mllion dollars a nonth. They
were significantly [ower in 2014.

And it’s just by virtue of the costs

associated with their partners and, basically, what they
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have to fund, so that one particular year the costs were
about $6 million |lower than they normally are.

Once again, roughly, about a mllion
dollars a nonth or 12 mllion a year. |f ny nenory
serves nme, there was about $6 mllion in that given year
so that’s what really drove the increased perfornmance on
a net basis in 2014 for the N x.

M5. COTTO Ckay. That explanation | eads
to your EBI TDA?

MR ALEMAN: Correct.

M5. COITO Because your EBITDA for N X in
2014 actual |y decreased between 2014 and 2015.

MR ALEVMAN: It went down from’14 to ' 15.

MB. COITO  Ckay.

MR. ALEMAN. R ght. '14 was good, and
then it went down to ' 15.

M5. COTTO  Ckay, now, could you provide a
table with nunbers, the sane nunbers for EBI TDA, working
capital and stockholder’s equity, related to New Jersey
as it is right now?

MR. ALEMAN. Sure. Update that for New
Jersey.

M5. COTTO  Yeah, for New Jersey. |Include

one line that includes New Jersey.
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MR ALEMAN:  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: That w Il be
Late File No. 19.

M5. COTTO And that’s it. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Al |l set?

M5. COITQO  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Do you have
anything? GCkay. | just want to take a few nore m nutes
of your tinme and go back to the quality issue.

As you're aware, quality has been an issue
inthis hearing, last night’s hearing. It’s been an
issue with us, and it’s been an issue with the comunity
menbers.

It’s also one of OHCA's criteria that we
need to look at in deciding on this application, and I
just want to -- | don’'t want to go into many specifics,
but I just want to highlight sonme of the quality issues
that we di scussed.

Specifically, in April 2014, there was an
i mredi at e jeopardy found at Southern California Hospital
at Holl ywood. In August 2014, the surveyors found that
i mredi ate jeopardy still existed at that hospital.

I n Sept enber of 2015, Southern California
Hospital at Holl ywood, Culver Gty and Hol | ywood, were
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found to be in i medi ate jeopardy.

I n Decenber 2015, imedi ate j eopardy was
found at Southern California Hospital at Hollywood. In
Novenber of 2015, deficiencies were found at Los Angel es
Conmmunity Hospital. And, in February of 2016, a resurvey
of Los Angeles Community Hospital found that the hospita
failed to address the Novenber 2015 audit deficiencies.

And we’ ve heard testinony about the
quality agreenent that’s in place for two years, and
we’ ve heard ot her testinony about sone of the steps you
took to rectify the deficiencies and the i medi ate
| eopar dy.

|"d like you to take this opportunity to
expand upon with nore specificity what actions you're
taking, not only at the local level, but at the corporate
| evel .

As Perry stated earlier today, there’s
some confusion with respect to the allocation between
corporate and the local level, in terns of who is
responsi ble for quality assurance, so if you can take
this opportunity to address us and the comunity nenbers,
|’ d appreciate that.

MR CROCKETT: You know, | think that the

way to start the conversation is that, you know, quality

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ wWw N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N PP O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O

180
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 30, 2016

starts and ends on a day-to-day basis, and what you do
for quality is interesting in what happened yesterday,
but every single day quality needs to occur.

From our perspective, that’s sonething
that we strive for and we'll continue to strive for in
each of the facilities.

Wth that, it has always been and wl |
continue to be inportant for this organization, | nean
Prospect and ECHN, that the ability of a local teamto be
able to resolve issues in real tinme fashion.

It’s not unconmon, when you tal k about
quality, that it starts with not just a patient, but it
al so enconpasses a physician and what his needs are, in
order to provide safe care, as well as conplaints froma
patient.

Fromthose three areas, it’'s inportant for
us to make sure that the local teamis enpowered and
remai ns enpowered to resolve issues quickly and tinely
and appropriately.

As we tal k through this, that has al ways
been our nmandate, and it continues to be our nandate, and
we | ook to hold our |ocal teans accountable in real tine
and not have to go through a corporate approval process

or off-site approval associated with that.
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That being said, obviously, it didn't
prevent certain issues arising within the hospitals that
you nentioned, and, as we went through and | ooked at what
was causi ng sone of those issues, in particular, one of
the common threads that we’ve seen was a |ack or a
turnover at the executive level, as well as sone at the
nurse | evel.

Some of the chall enges we have
specifically to this specific market, so this is not an
issue that’s within all of our California, | nean w thout
all of our Prospect hospitals, but wwthin this specific
market, is that Los Angel es County has 73 hospitals just
within the county, and, with that, our hospitals are
safety net providers working as community-based hospitals
i n underserved areas, and we are next door neighbors to
very large, well-respected, well-regarded organi zati ons.

And, so, with that being said, the
conmpetition wthin our marketplace at an executive |evel,
as well as at a nurse level, is trenendous, and, so, it's
not uncomon for the large academc tertiary centers, in
order to get their nurses, they will go after the nurses
that are already enpl oyed and have the ability to do so.

And, so, our challenge w thin our

mar ket pl ace, and it continues to be a chall enge and
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sonet hing that we have now spent additional tinme and
energy to focus on, is maintaining consistent |eadership
within a very, very conpetitive market, as well as nurse
| eader shi p.

And, so, with that, we have nultiple
initiatives to address those issues, including proper
career pathways for nurses, so they feel that they don’t
have to | eave our organi zation, specialty training for
the nurses. W’re looking for a nentoring program a
preceptorshi p program and ongoi ng support.

Nursing, at the end of the day, when you
tal k about quality, it’s not 100 percent of the quality,
but it’s usually a major part of it.

That’ s not the only cause, obviously,
associated with it. So going forward, a couple of
different things. One of themis that, as we nentioned
previously in our presentation, is, if the organizations
do have a lack of resource or expertise, that it’'s
inmportant for us on a go-forward basis to be able to
provi de | eadership and that expertise to backfill as a
backstop to organi zations that may have sone of those
concerns, so that’s nunber one.

And we | ook to have kind of a consistent,

hi gh-1 evel | eadership expertise that can assist when the
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organi zati ons do have turnover, or gaps, or a know edge
deficit associated with it.

On the turnover piece, we have engaged
W th our corporate HR Departnent, with our local facility
HR Departnents, to put in new additional progranms to
address sone of the issues associated with the turnover
and retention of the staff.

W believe and we're fully conmtted to
it, internms of putting the resources that are needed to
address it in going forward.

Let’s be clear. CMS doesn’t enjoy com ng
out, and they’'ve said the sanme thing. They have a high
expectation, and they told us personally that being on a
rollercoaster ride and nultiple visits is not what they
do, nor what they expect to do, and it’'s very disruptive
i n our organization.

And, so, we're commtted to resolving the
i ssues, and with sonme of the things | had outlined
bef orehand, as well, | hope that you would see that, as
wel | .

DR LEW Kevin, let ne just add --

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED:  Sure.

DR LEW -- to what Von said, because I

t hi nk he probably answered nost of your question, but |
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think you wanted to hear like --

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: No, go ahead
Add what you'd like to add.

DR LEW Yeah. Quality is going to be of
t he highest priority, okay, for this conpany. The silver
lining in going through what we’'re going through is it
poi nts out areas that we need to inprove, whether it be
to build out a corporate infrastructure, bringing the
Chief Quality Oficer, and a | ot nore bandwidth in the
area of quality, but it’s also in other areas related to
clinical and nedical, and |’ mone exanple, being in the
corporate office.

So |l can tell you that it is a priority,
and it is a coomtnent at the very highest |evel, and,
so, you know, Von can tell you the details of what’s
happening at the |l evel of each local hospital, but | can
assure you, at the corporate level, it has our attention
daily and will continue to.

|"d love to be here in front of you at
some point or share with you how we turned it around and
how it’'s sonething that we're very, very proud of.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: (kay, thank you.
Does anyone el se want to add anything? GCkay. Al right,

t hat concludes our -- did you want to add sonet hi ng,
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Doctor? | see you reaching for the m crophone.

DR O NEILL: | have a sunmary, sunmary
comment at the end.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: (Ckay. That
concl udes our question and answer session. At this
point, if counsel or their clients want to give a cl osing
statenent, they’'re wel cone to do so.

DR O NEILL: Well | just wanted to say,
on behalf of ECHN, | wanted to thank all of you again for
the opportunity to provide support for this transaction.

W appreci ate your insightful questions,
because they’ ve served as gui deposts for us along the
process, and we certainly appreciate your attention to
our application.

|"d also like to thank nenbers of the
comunity, who have spoken at both hearings, because it’s
only through their support that we exist.

Approving this transaction will allow the
physi ci ans, nurses and hospitals of eastern Connecti cut
to continue to provide the services that we think our
citizens need and deserve, so, on behalf of ECHN, 1'd
like to thank you agai n.

DR LEW And, also, on behalf of Prospect

Medi cal Holdings, | also want to thank the conmmunities of

POST REPORTI NG SERVI CE
HAMDEN, CT (800) 262-4102



© 00 N o o -~ wWw N Pk

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O O 00 N O O B W N +—» O©O

186
HEARI NG RE: ECHN AND PIVH
MARCH 30, 2016

Manchest er and Rockville.

To hear the questions and the passion of
t he people of the community it’s very reassuring to us on
how t he people of the community care, and that’s
inmportant to us, to cone in to regions and communities,
where the people really do care about the health care
delivery system and how they’ re going to be inpacted.

| also want to thank the AGs Ofice, Gry
and Henry and Perry and Kevin and OHCA, Kim and Steven
and Carnen, for your tinme.

| hope you’ ve | earned nore about Prospect
as a conpany and, also inportantly, learned a little bit
nmor e about the senior managenent team

We are good citizens, even though we are
fromCalifornia, with the exception of Tom but we do
care about what we’'re doing as a conpany.

And you’ ve heard that we operate
hospitals, and we operate nedical groups, and we’ve got
this unique delivery nodel, and we also feel like this is
a very good fit wwth ECHN, and | hope that you' re
convinced that we are, both parties, very conmtted to
making this work in the long-termfor both commnities.

And | ask that you do approve this

conversion application, and just know that we -- that you
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approve it in a way that you know that we are a very
i nnovative and an entrepreneurial conpany, and that we're
not your normal conpany, and | nean that in a good way.

And | understand that you have assets to
protect, but you heard Steve share that we use our
commtnent as a floor, and that we haven't closed
hospitals, and we don’t close services. W'’'re a growh
conmpany. W add services, and we add prograns.

And | know that OHCA has a responsibility
to assure access, but | hope you understand that access
is part of our nodel, and a community needs type of
eval uation is part of the solution, but these things are
all very inportant for us to function and to be
successful .

And if this can go through, | amvery
confident that not only will two hospitals be saved, but,
in fact, they will be far better, in terns of services
and quality, and we will build a delivery systemthat can
be a choice and another option for the state, and that we
can be seen as transformative in a delivery systemthat
Connecticut can be very proud of.

And we're in this for the long-term okay?
This is not sonething that we're investing this kind of

noney to, quote, “flip it,” okay?
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W are inthis for the long-term W' ve
all been in health care all of our careers, so | ask that
you just take that, but, again, thank you very nuch for
this opportunity.

MR ZI NN ROMHORN: Thank you, Doctor, and
thank all of you. This is a long and detail ed and maybe
it mght seem | aborious process, but it’s an inportant
process, and | know we’ ve benefitted fromhaving this
exchange today.

"1l close with where | started this
norni ng, which is to enphasize our gratitude to the
menbers of the comunity, who were with us today and
shared their views today and | ast night, so we appreciate
it, and thank you very nuch.

HEARI NG OFFI CER HANSTED: Thank you, all
Before we | eave, before we |eave, one nonent. | just
want to clarify for those fol ks that may have cone in
|ate, is there anyone here that would like to give public
comment that did not have an opportunity to do so?

Ckay. Thank you, all, again, and, with
that, I will adjourn this hearing.

(Wher eupon, the hearing adjourned at 7:32

p.m)
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